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GLOSSARY

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms used under BN E B BB THAFER - £FE R
Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and & - EEEBFwm A0 BEFBEE  0EETA
Analysis, Biographical Details of Directors, Corporate Governance Report, W& BEEFeRELAFUHEHMEMA AR
Report of the Directors and Five-Year Financial Summary shall have the EEAGUTNAEHNZIERE -

respective meanings set out below.

“2024 AGM”
TE_NFERRBFANE]

“2025 AGM”
ZEHFRRAFTAE]

“AGM(s)”
RRBFKE]

“Annual Report”
[ |

“Articles of Association”

(A =2AA)

“associate(s)”

(B A

“Audit Committee”

[BERELZEg]

“Board”

[EFg]

“CEQ” or “Chief Executive Officer”
[T B 42

“CFQO” or “Chief Financial Officer”
[EEMBEE]

“CG Code”
[Z2ERSFA

“Chairman”

[E /%]

AGM held on Friday, 18 October 2024
RZFEZME+A+NB(ERR)RTHORREFAE

AGM to be held on Friday, 17 October 2025
BR - AFTATERERRBRTHRREFAE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company
RARKREBFRS

annual report of the Company for the Year

RRABRAFEEFERE

articles of association of the Company as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time
ARARZ BEBERMA (BTRER]  BEXBITELE)

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

ERETRAUETHRE

audit committee of the Board

E=gE%%EBE

board of Directors

-

chief executive officer of the Company

ARRRZITHAEE

chief financial officer of the Company

ARABZERMBE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
EH R B ERCI P E 2 B ASF A

chairman of the Board

EFEIR
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“China” or “PRC”

(B

“close associate(s)”

[EEmBE AL

“Company”

NS

“Company Secretary” or
“Secretary”
[RAWE]ISR I WE]

“connected person(s)”
[BAE AL

“controlling shareholder(s)”

[ B B 3R

“Director(s)”

(%]

“EGM(s)”
[REFRIARE]

“ESG”
(R HERER

“Executive Director(s)” or “ED(s)”

[B1TEE]

“Fan, Chan”

[SBRR]

“Financial Statements”

5 75 2

GLOSSARY
5

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of the Annual Report, excluding
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China and Taiwan

TEARANME  RAFHME  TEEEE HPEARKMERPSRIT
B MR

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB EmARAPE T RRE

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and the issued Shares are
listed and traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1470)
E-EBEZERERAA —HRRASESTMA I ERRERAE - A
BEEITROPBRIMER LM RR S (KRG : 1470)

company secretary of the Company

KRB ZRAME

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BA TR RME T ERE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmARRAPTE T REE

director(s) of the Company

ARRES

extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company

ARABBRFE A

environmental, social and governance

B iR REA

executive Director(s)

WITES

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, the Independent Auditor
BREFAITER DR - B XA

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

REBAFEZHFEAVBRER

T-BEERERARAF @ —TE-omE / —RAEEH 3



GLOSSARY
Eal=

“Group”
[AREE ]

“HKFRS(s)”

(BB o E 2R

AIHK$”
&)

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Independent Auditor”
[ Y8 37 1% B A |

“Independent Non-executive
Director(s)” or “INED(s)”

(B IFEHITESE]

“Listing Rules”

[ 7 Al

“Model Code”

EEEE

i

“Nomination Committee”

fExZEa

“Prosper One”

M= —

“Register of Members”

MR 3R % 1)

“Remuneration Committee”
EdiE3 =N

“BMB” or “Renminbi”
AR

the Company and its subsidiaries
RARREMBEAF

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

BAGEAGHEM BB HRE LR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BIL BBEEER

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEIEBRFAITHER

independent auditor of the Company
AN B S AR BRD

independent non-executive Director(s)

BYIFFMITES

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
B R PEE 5 AR B (A RHEE] - M S ITIE 1)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
EMRAISRCIFTE EMBITAEFHEITES R HNIREFA

nomination committee of the Board

EFgRA%ET

Prosper One Enterprises Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company

E-0EARAT  ARTN—LERBER

register of members of the Company

/NI i

remuneration committee of the Board

E=xgyMEzES®

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AREE - PEIEEEH
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GLOSSARY

ik
“SFO” Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
[3& 75 R B E 50 5 BEELEPIFESTIEZFRBAEGRO (ETRER BB SITEE)
“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
[ A& 17 ] i RAARBRAPEREMBEOIE T 2 LB
“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of the Share(s)
[z 3R ] 5 R FEH A
“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
[B8 22 PAT ¥ BEEMERIHAER AT
“subsidiary(ies)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
RGN s BB EmBRAMETHRE
“treasury share(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
[ 17 5 ] i BB FmRAIMETHRE
“Year” year ended 30 April 2025
[ 7N & & & HE-_Z_RAFNA=THILEFE
“Year 2024” year ended 30 April 2024
—EMEE i HE-ZT-_NFNA=1TRHLFE
“%” per cent. or percentage
RAEANEE = i Ea=d

T-EEERARAT —TE-NE/ —FREEH 5



CORPORATE INFORMATION

LFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Guoging (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BIEE S (FEFITHEE)

Mr. Liu Jiagiang 210 5& 55 A&

Mr. Li Dongpo (Chief Financial Officer) TRWEE(BEREIFE)

Ms. Wong Wai Chu (appointed on 29 November 2024) EERZT
(RZFZWFES—A=ZFLHEZF)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan EREAE

Mr. Wang Luping FEFEEA

Mr. Gao Jizhong mE AL

BOARD COMMITTEES EEXEZETE

Audit Committee BERZEES

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) AEREE(ERE)

Mr. Wang Luping FEFEE

Mr. Gao Jizhong St

Remuneration Committee FMHEES

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) AEREE(EE)

Mr. Liu Guoging 2B A4

Mr. Wang Luping FEFEE

Nomination Committee REZE®

Mr. Gao Jizhong (appointed as Chairman on 25 June 2025) EEARLEE
(R-ZE-—AFNA-—+TAEZEABEE)

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan TEREE

Ms. Wong Wai Chu (appointed on 25 June 2025) s Segum
(R—ZFE_AFNA-—+HA¥EZT)

Mr. Liu Guoging (former Chairman) (ceased on 25 June 2025) RIRE k£ (BT E/E)
(R=ZFZAFNAZ+HHHE)

COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

Mr. Kwok Siu Man (appointed on 26 May 2025) IRk &
(R—FE_FAFRAA -+ NAEZT)

Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie (resigned on 26 May 2025) BREET

(R-ZZF_AFAHAZ+NAEFE)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NGIE-§
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERRX
Mr. Liu Guoging 2B A4
Mr. Kwok Siu Man (appointed on 26 May 2025) IRk A&
(RZE—AEFERAAZFNNAESE)
Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie (ceased on 26 May 2025) ERBAT

(R=—E-FAFAA =+ NHHT)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B ERD

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited BREFTEIITER AR
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEIREIT
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited FRERT(EBBRAA
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited ERBITEB)BRAA
Hang Seng Bank Limited EERITERAF

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited BB LEBEZRITARA R

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACEOF #MREBTEELEME
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre BB

No. 183 Queen’s Road East E

Wanchai SR RBER1835

Hong Kong AR 48124801 F
REGISTERED OFFICE AMRERE
Cricket Square Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

E-FEEERERAR 2 —_TE-NE/—AEEH [/
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NGIE=¢

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.prosperoneintl.com

LISTING INFORMATION

Place of Listing:

Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Stock Code

1470

Board Lot

4,000 Shares

MEREXTERNBF
Bk

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EEROBFEERTRE

BEREESBELARDA
R

it A

ERE1485
21122103B=E

NGRS

www.prosperoneintl.com

EmER
Erdh

B 32 7 £ 1R

B% 41X 5%
1470
BFEEEN

4,000 /%
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To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Prosper One International Holdings Company
Limited, | hereby present the annual report of the Company for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business environment of the Group was full of challenges for the Year.
The sales performance of the Group’s wholesale business remained stagnant
under the impact of going north more frequently for consumption and weak
consumer sentiment. In view of this, the Group focused on clearing out slow-
moving inventories through sales promotion activities. Moreover, fertiliser
prices showed a downward trend due to oversupply and weak domestic
and international demand. Coupled with a sharp drop in the trading volume
of the export business, the Group’s trading business also encountered
many difficulties and challenges during the Year. Despite this, fueled by the
manufacture and sales of compound fertilisers business, the Group’s revenue
increased for the Year. To tide over the difficulties, the Group adopted a
series of measures to control operating costs, including but not limited to
reducing staff costs.

The major products sold by the Group’s trading business include urea and
compound fertiliser, and the application of urea can be broadly divided into
agricultural, industrial and vehicle uses. During the Year, the Group also sold
self-produced compound fertiliser. Coupled with a weak domestic demand,
the trading volume of compound fertiliser fell to 26,760 tonnes, representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 45.4%. Affected by the tightening
of export policies, the export volume of urea dropped to 5,003 tonnes,
representing a sharp decline of approximately 94.3% compared with the
same period last year, which severely affected the business performance of
the Group’s export business. Faced with a sharp decline in the export volume
of urea, the Group demonstrated strong adaptability and actively adopted
a series of marketing strategies to promote domestic sales. The domestic
trading volume of urea achieved considerable growth, offsetting the impact of
the decline in the trading volume of compound fertiliser, and driving a slight
increase in the Group’s domestic trading business revenue. Nevertheless, the
Group’s trading business still recorded a significant decline in revenue for the
Year due to the poor performance of the Group’s export business.

B -EERZEERABRAQA

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE|E

EHHKRR:

AANBURERE-—BERERBERARESE
REARANAFEZFR-

EBEE

FA AEENKERETHKE - ElL LH
EFRRE HEERESNEET A5E
MM BEXBHEXRREF TR - BER L
AEBBBRIFLY STEEFEEY - It
Sh AREUBR R R B ASNE KRS - IERHE
BETTBE - MEIEHOEXBKESHEKER
D AEEEBESEBEFANTREESE -EE
it EEAREEREEXRBNHEES T - &
SEFARAGMER REBHE A5E
R —RIEHREFLERE BEETR
N i = B N

REBEEBEFEBTEHEERBERZERE
AR MREZABRKREAIDERE TEKE
BR®& -FR AEBETHEFRESIE - I
FRAFTRES  EEEESHER D E26,760
WE > RILLE A #45.4% S H O BB R BN
2 [REHHOE T ZE50030 @ & X F [F H
AIER A #94.3% BMEFEAEEL O ER
MEERB -AYHREHOENKRBRLD &K
SERBEBGMNEZE N BERIR— &
PIEHEREE BENBE REXBEANBEHEEHR
EER KEEARESERINTE  #
HASEBRANE ZEBRENDBEER AT
FRN BRASELEOEBHRBATE A&
EE SEBHRAMESRERD -

—E-_ME/—HAEFH 9
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

o
FREWE

Since October 20283, the Group has successfully expanded its business to
the manufacture and sale of compound fertilisers by leveraging its existing
advantages. In 2024, affected by insufficient domestic market demand, the
prices of compound fertiliser showed a downward trend. Meanwhile, the
contradiction between market supply and demand still existed, and the overall
market competition has intensified. To get through the hard times, the Group
continued to strengthen relationships with customers and optimise product
sales channels to actively expand the fertiliser product market. In early 2025,
the situation improved. Due to the release of spring ploughing demand,
the prices of compound fertiliser rose slightly. During the Year, the Group
produced a total of 27,486 tonnes of compound fertilisers and achieved a
sales volume of 26,339 tonnes.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a profit attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$5.4 million for the Year, as
compared to a profit of approximately HK$1.3 million for the Year 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$77.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$5.3 million from approximately
HK$71.9 million as compared to Year 2024.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately
HK$4.1 million from approximately HK$1.3 million for the Year 2024 to
approximately HK$5.4 million for the Year.

B-ZEZ-=F+ AR AEENBEREE
BOERNAREEBRERAIERERIEE -
RZTEZMF XEAMSHERTENTE -
BEARERETTBR R MBHEFTE
KA ZBEMEHFNE - BEBRHE -
REEHENERTPHBE  BLE DY
ERE HBRHEREHERMSE RZZTZ
TEY BABTE -BREMEKENR
BEEERERBEHMLER - TR AEEHEE
27,486 MEE & HE - 34 = 3= 26,339 MF ©

HREXA AEERFREFSARAHE
BARERENNABEETL HEYBEEZ_F
“MEEHSENOISEERT

R E S

FA - AEEHSRENT72BEET &
TECFEHNTIOABELEMYSIAE
BT e

ARG HEEAEGZANOB S _NFEH
A1 EEBTENVIIBEATEARFEEN
H5AEEETT
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the domestic demand for fertilisers is expected to maintain
growth, and fertiliser prices will fluctuate with factors such as raw material
prices and low season and peak season. Under the control of environmental
protection policies, the enforcement of more stringent emission standard
may lead to higher production costs for manufacturers, thereby pushing up
fertiliser prices. As for export business, it is expected that export policies will
not be relaxed in the short term, and the performance of export business
will inevitably be affected. The development of environmentally friendly and
high-efficiency fertilisers has become an emerging trend in the fertiliser
industry. The Group will continue to strengthen production management,
create a more environmentally friendly and energy- efficient production
model, and strive to provide customers with more efficient and high-quality
fertiliser products to further enhance product competitiveness. The Group
will also make good use of existing resources to promote growth strategies,
continuously optimise product sales channels, and actively cater to market
development trends.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the Board members, management and employees for
their hard work and dedication that enable the Group to face the challenges
and uncertainties during the Year. Last but not least, | wish to express my
sincere thanks to our Shareholders, suppliers, customers and other business
partners for their ongoing trust and support.

Liu Guoqing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 July 2025

—EERZERBRAQA

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEWE

Al 5=

REAR AACRERES BRI 5 e
’ﬁmmﬁﬁw B B B AR AT
SRERD - ERREROERET - B
%%mmmﬁmﬁmﬁﬁgﬁiéﬁﬁmi
BERA LT ETHSICIEEE - ER A%
% BEEMAEORETEME - O£
REBUERHNYE  BRE  BRELED
FECHALERITEOHRBYS  ARER
SEBRICAETE THEERR HRENLE
B NFAEPRHEEAM BEMNILEE
R SRAESEF N AK - A%E
KREEHFAREEREDERESR  TH
BIERBERE  BEIEETSHED -

&)

AANBREREFZTERUBERLBEHNES S
FRC EEERETAMETERMSH 8%
BN AFE LML BEEERBELT
AREER - &R AAZBHARER &R
EPRAMEBBHRERONHE - BH
BE-—BARNEEES-

FiE
BIEE

B8 —E-RAFtRA=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEERARESH

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was approximately HK$77.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$5.3 milion or 7.4% from
approximately HK$71.9 million for the Year 2024. Revenue derived from
trading business decreased by approximately HK$21.1 million or 54.0% from
approximately HK$39.1 million for the Year 2024 to approximately HK$18.0
million for the Year. Revenue derived from watch wholesale business
decreased by approximately HK$0.6 million or 33.3% from approximately
HK$1.8 million for the Year 2024 to approximately HK$1.2 million for the
Year. Revenue derived from manufacture and sales of compound fertilisers
business increased by approximately HK$27.1 milion or 87.4% from
approximately HK$31.0 million for the Year 2024 to approximately HK$58.1
million for the Year. The decrease in revenue derived from trading business
was mainly due to a significant decrease in trading volume of the export
business and weak market demand. The Group expanded its business to the
manufacture and sales of compound fertilisers since October 2023, resulting
in a corresponding increase in revenue from it.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of cost of inventories sold and provision
for slow-moving inventories. Our cost of sales increased by approximately
HK$24.5 million from approximately HK$30.4 million for the Year 2024 to
approximately HK$54.9 million for the Year. The cost of sales of compound
fertilisers increased by approximately HK$25.8 million or 89.6% from
approximately HK$28.8 million for the Year 2024 to approximately HK$54.6
million for the Year. The Group expanded its business to the manufacture and
sales of compound fertilisers since October 2023, resulting in a corresponding
increase in the cost of sales of compound fertilisers.

Gross profit

The overall gross profit decreased by approximately HK$19.1 million or 46.0%
from approximately HK$41.5 million for the Year 2024 to approximately
HK$22.4 million for the Year. The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to a
decrease of approximately HK$21.1 million in gross profit of trading business,
which was partially offset by (i) an increase of approximately HK$1.3 million in
gross profit of manufacture and sales of compound fertilisers business and (ii)
an increase of approximately HK$0.7 million in gross profit of watch wholesale
business.

Bt 75 Bl R

i &=

REBRAFEHEBSRENHT7T2EE B L.
BoCE_NFEELHIOBE B TEMNLDS3E
EBELRT4% - BHEBEMBREHR ===
MEEHNIEEBTRLHN211BEBEITK
540%EAFEH18.0B BB T - Peskit 2 %
BHBKREFEH T _MEEN1.8EEB TR
LH06AEBTHIBI%EAFEEHNI2AS
BT -BAREEREEEEMSEREHZ
S_NFEHNI0EEB LB MP71EEE
TLKBTANEAFEHSBIAEB T - BEHE
BRBRERIITEAREOEBKESEX
BEMEEREBAIR - AEEE T ==
FHARBEBEREVERHBEELEAR.
A5 E) AT 15 W o KR FE 3G 0 -

SHE KA

BN HEEREAETZERECETERARRE
HEERE RMNBEERNABR S Z_NF
EXIN4BBAETIEMN245B8EBLERF
B4 9B BEL - EARBEERTIA T =
U E 42888 & B MN425.88 B8 Tk
86N EARFEEHNLI6EBEE L - AEEH =
T FTAREBENRBRREVERIBER
A TEE A R E K ARG -

ER

BEENA T _NFELHMAEETH
DI A BB ILRI0NERFE L2245
BETLT - EMNRITEZAREZEBENERN
WMAOKAABEETT  EE)E S IERE M H
EEBHENEMNO1.38 88 7T R (i) sk it
BEEBHEMBMY07TASE LM AL D HH -
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Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs decreased by approximately HK$11.7
million or 55.5% from approximately HK$21.1 million for the Year 2024
to approximately HK$9.4 million for the Year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to a decrease of freight costs. The freight costs declined
significantly because of significant decrease in trading volume of the export
business.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$9.9 million
or 55.0% from approximately HK$18.0 milion for the Year 2024 to
approximately HK$8.1 million for the Year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the decrease in financial advisory fee, directors’ remuneration
and administrative staff’s salaries and allowances.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately HK$162,000 from
approximately HK$171,000 for the Year 2024 to approximately HK$9,000
for the Year. The decrease was due to a decrease in finance costs on lease
liabilities.

Profit before tax and profit attributable to owners
of the Company

The Group recorded a profit before tax of approximately HK$6.9 million for
the Year (2024: approximately HK$4.5 million). The increase was mainly due
to a decrease in total staff costs.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately
HK$4.1 million from approximately HK$1.3 milion for the Year 2024 to
approximately HK$5.4 million for the Year.

—EERZERBRQA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHBRH

HER D HBRA
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211BE & B TR 11, 7E%}am&555%i
REEHNIOAEBEL TZHREBRNAT
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BEBL FEZEHRAUBKERE EZMME MU
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREH RN

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s primary source of funds were cash inflows from operating
activities and loans from the ultimate holding company.

As at 30 April 2025, the Group’s total cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$127.1 million (as at 30 April 2024: approximately HK$65.8
million), most of which were denominated in HK$, United States dollars and
Renminbi. The current ratio (calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities) of the Group maintained at approximately 1.1 times as at 30 April
2025 and 30 April 2024. The gearing ratio (calculated by dividing net debt
by total equity) was not applicable as the Group maintained at a net cash
position as at 30 April 2025 and 30 April 2024. Net debt was calculated as
amount due to ultimate holding company and lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 April 2025, the Group had a total of 57 (2024: 62) employees.
The total remuneration costs incurred by the Group for the Year were
approximately HK$9.7 million (2024: approximately HK$18.7 million). We
review the performance of our employees annually and use the results of
such review in our annual salary review and promotion appraisal, in order to
attract and retain valuable employees. Remuneration packages are generally
structured by reference to market norms as well as individual qualifications,
relevant experience and performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Board to grant share options to eligible participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company. As at the date
of the Annual Report, there was no outstanding share option granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

B 3 AR

AEBNITEESRBEARAREEB K
REBRARERNBASRA -

#:x—£¢@H:+E'$EEME$&
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AEMEROIAE - RZE_AFHEA=+
B -_E-_MEMA=+H ARAEESE
BEHEeMRR MELABBEHLR(RARBESR

@u%*@%%”WEKK% B R e
HF”? SERMERBAERSR
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DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 30 April 2025 and 30 April 2024.

As at 30 April 2025 and 30 April 2024, the Group did not have any foreign
exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

As at 30 April 2025 and 30 April 2024, the Group had no banking facilities for
overdrafts and loans.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group does not have a significant foreign exchange exposure and
has currently not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy. The
management will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plans for material investments and capital assets
as at 30 April 2025 (as at 30 April 2024: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

The Company did not hold any significant investment in equity interest in any
company other than its subsidiaries as at 30 April 2025 (as at 30 April 2024:
Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any material capital commitments as at 30 April 2025
(as at 30 April 2024: HK$541,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREH BRI
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HAREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2025 @s AEBER —_Z-_AF N A=+ B EITMNE
at 30 April 2024: Nil). ARSI ARBBEBR T _MEFMA=+H: &)
FINAL DIVIDEND KERR B

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final dividend % & & 2 #2112 = 5t A F E R £ 1] K 23
for the Year (2024: Ni). RE(ZZZMEF: &)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Guoging (%I Bl ), aged 54, had been appointed as an Executive
Director on 7 September 2017, the Chief Financial Officer on 28 September
2017, and a Co-chief Executive Officer on 18 October 2017 and was
subsequently re-designated as an Executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer on 1 April 2018. He was further re-designated as an Executive
Director, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman on 10 April 2024. He
was the chairman and a member of the Nomination Committee from 10 April
2024 to 24 June 2025 and is also a member of the Remuneration Committee.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in corporate management from Beijing
Business Management College* (1t Rt ¥ E 2 & ZFt) in the PRC in
July 2005. He joined Ruixing Group Company Limited* (3% £ &% B I% 1D A&
R /A A1) in August 2003 with his current position as the manager of finance
department and as a deputy general manager since January 2016. He has
over ten years of managerial experience in financial matters and nine years
of managerial experience in procurement and logistics operations in Ruixing
Group Company Limited*.

Mr. Liu Guoqing is the brother-in-law of Mr. Meng Guangyin, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Liu Jiagiang (2 1N 3&), aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director
on 7 September 2017. He obtained a degree in finance from Shandong
Agricultural University* (1L 5R £ 2 K 2) in January 2016. He has over 25
years of working experience, and spent fifteen years thereof in a managerial
role. He has worked in Ruixing Group Company Limited* (¥ £ 5% & I 17
AR A R]) since December 1995 and has served as the general manager
in the investment department and the manager in the capital operations
department since November 2016. He is the deputy general manager of
certain subsidiaries of the Company in Shandong, the PRC.

Mr. Li Dongpo (Z X #), aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director
on 10 December 2021 and the Chief Financial Officer on 10 April 2024. He
graduated from Party School of the Provincial Committee of Shandong in
China* (FEHEEELREZEEER) in December 2009 majoring in
economy management. He has over 25 years of working experience in sales
and manufacturing of fertiliser and biochemical products for agricultural
industry. He has worked in Ruixing Group Company Limited* (3 £ £ & I 1
A BR 2 &) since December 1995 and has served in various managerial roles
in different major departments since 2007. He has been serving as the deputy
general manager, general secretary and legal director of Ruixing Group
Company Limited* since December 2020 and is responsible for management
of Ruixing Group Company Limited* (x5 £ £ B &5 B R A 7).
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18 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Chu (& = k) (“Ms. Wong”), aged 38, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 29 November 2024 and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 25 June 2025. She had been a director assistant of the
Company since November 2017 during which she assisted the Directors in
the daily operations of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Wong
had worked as a client broker of SinoPac Securities (Asia) Limited, a licensed
corporation to carry out regulated activities under the SFO, from September
2015 to March 2017 where she was mainly responsible for organizing and
executing trading instructions from clients; and had worked as a financial
consultant of Sun International Wealth Management Limited (currently known
as GLF Wealth Management Limited), an insurance brokerage company,
from December 2014 to August 2015 where she was mainly responsible
for providing financial planning services and designing investment portfolios.
She had worked for Shanghai XNG Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 3666), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from March
2012 to October 2014, with her last position as a marketing officer, mainly
responsible for planning and execution of marketing activities. Ms. Wong had
also worked for the Hong Kong Productivity Council as an assistant project
manager from August 2011 to February 2012 and assisted in project planning
and events organizing. Ms. Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree of business
administration in marketing from the City University of Hong Kong in October
2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (H & 3&) (“Mr. Tian”), aged 54, was appointed as an
INED on 20 September 2017. Mr. Tian is also the chairman of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Tian has over 25 years of working experience in
the fields of accounting and audit.

Mr. Tian joined ShineWing Certified Public Accountants Jinan Branch* ({5
KA MEEAMEBSAT(FHREBER)EME D AT in September 1994 and
has been the director of management consultancy department since July
2016, responsible for the business development and technical support of
consultancy service projects.

Mr. Tian obtained a diploma in financial accounting from Beijing Jiaotong
University (1t 77 238 K 2) (now known as 1t @ AE) in July 1994,
Mr. Tian is a registered certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Wang Luping (£ & ¥) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 56, was appointed as an
INED on 27 December 2018. Mr. Wang is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wang completed his legal
speciality studies at Beijing Jinggiao University* (1t 5 548 A 2) in 1990 and
his undergraduate legal studies at China University of Political Science and
Law in 2005. He is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and has worked as a legal
professional for more than 30 years. He has been a director of Shandong
Faya Law Firm* (1Ll 5% H 122 8 5 75 P7) since 2008.

Mr. Gao Jizhong (& & &) (“Mr. Gao”), aged 52, a former INED from
August 2018 to October 2018, was re-appointed as an INED on 15 February
2024. Mr. Gao is also a member of the Audit Committee and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. He completed his lawyering specialty studies
in July 1996 and his undergraduate legal studies in January 2007 at the
Shandong Administrative Cadre Institute of Politics and Law* (LU R BUE &
B ELEPT) (now known as Shandong University of Political Science and
Law (LU 5 BUEEBR)) in the PRC. Mr. Gao became qualified as a lawyer in
the PRC in 1997 and has been working at Shandong Wanlixing Law Firm* (L4
B & B 172605 % FT) since July 1998, where he became its founder when
the business structure of the said firm has changed from partnership to sole
proprietorship in 2009.

*  The English transliterations of the Chinese names are for identification purpose only
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2() Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGHRSE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its Shareholders
and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ value through good corporate
governance. The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management structures,
internal control and risk management procedures of the Group so as to
achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures, internal control
and risk management procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted and adhered to the principles as
set out in the CG Code.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has adopted and complied with all
applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the Year
and up to the date of the Annual Report save for code provisions C.5.1, C.2.1
and F.2.2 of the CG Code as disclosed in the Annual Report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
governing the securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific
enquiry made by the Company on each of the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of the Group.
The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support is in place for the Group to
achieve its objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but are
not limited to formulating the Group’s business plans and strategies, deciding
all significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and operational
issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate
governance practices and all other functions reserved to the Board under
the Articles of Association. The Board has established Board committees
and has delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of reference. The responsibilities of
these Board committees include monitoring the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensuring that appropriate internal control and
risk management are in place. The Board may from time to time delegate
certain functions to the management of the Group if and when considered
appropriate. The management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to
it from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to perform their
responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding and implementing the view that the
Board should include a balanced composition of Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

As at 30 April 2025, the Board comprised seven Directors, of which the
INEDs in aggregate represented more than one-third of the Board members.
The composition of the Board during the Year is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Guoging

Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Mr. Li Dongpo

Ms. Wong Wai Chu (appointed on 29 November 2024)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE REPORT
EEERRS

INEDS

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Wang Luping
Mr. Gao Jizhong

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of the Annual Report.

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
the Directors.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experience and independent judgement to the Board. Through active
participation in the Board meetings and serving on various Board committees,
all INEDs will continue to make various contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which was in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of
INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board members, and that
at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence in writing from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such
confirmation and not aware of the occurrence of any event that would impair
the independence of the INEDs, the Company considers that all the INEDs
are independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors’
liability has been arranged by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company provides each of the newly appointed Directors with a
formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/
her appointment to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and business and is fully aware of the Director’s
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and governance
policies.

Ms. Wong Wai Chu (appointed on 29 November 2024) obtained legal advice
on 27 November 2024, as required under Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules
from the legal advisor of the Company and confirmed she understood her
obligations as a director of a listed company.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Company will from time to time
fund and arrange suitable training to all Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in relation to their duties and responsibilities, such that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense and they have been requested to provide the Company with
their training records. According to the training records maintained by the
Company, the continuing professional development programmes received by
each of the Directors during the Year is summarised as follows:

Name of Directors
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Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Liu Guoging 2R E LA AandBand C AXBRKC
Mr. Liu Jiagiang 21 hn 58 5 A4 AandBand C AKBRKC
Mr. Li Dongpo e AandBand C AKBRC
Ms. Wong Wai Chu HEEKRZT

(appointed on 29 November 2024) (R=ZF=ZpWFE+—A=1T LHEZF) AandBandC ARBRKC
INEDs BUFHTES
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan HAERSLTE AandBand C AKBRKC
Mr. Wang Luping FEFEE AandBand C AKBRKC
Mr. Gao Jizhong mEARTE AandBand C AKBRC
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A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, in-house/external

seminars, briefings, conferences, forums and workshops

B: reading materials relating to the economy, general business, corporate
governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities

C: reading newspapers and journals relating to the corporate governance matters,
environment and social issues or director’s duties and responsibilities

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code provides the Board should meet
regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to
the Directors in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice will be given
in a reasonable time in advance. The Directors are allowed to include any
matter in the agenda that is required for discussion and resolution at the
meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed on issues arising at
each of the Board meetings and to make informed decisions, an agenda and
the accompanying Board papers will be sent to all Directors at least three
days before the intended date of the Board meeting, or such other period
as agreed. The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Board
meetings’ minutes. Draft and final versions of the minutes will be circulated to
the Directors for comments and record respectively within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.
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During the Year, two regular Board meetings and one other Board meeting
have been held and the Board has made certain resolutions by circulation of
written resolutions for all the Directors’ execution. In view of the simplicity of
the Group’s businesses, regular Board meetings have not been held about
quarterly during the Year. The Group’s audited consolidated annual results for
the Year 2024 and unaudited consolidated interim results for the six months
ended 31 October 2024 together with all corporate transactions made
during the Year have been reviewed and discussed amongst the Directors
at the Board meetings held in the Year. Together with the circulation of
written materials to keep the Board informed throughout the Year, sufficient
measures had been taken to ensure that there was efficient communication
among the Directors, including the INEDs. The attendance of each Director at
the Board meetings for the Year and the 2024 AGM is set out below:

Name of Directors
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Board
Meeting(s) 2024 AGM
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No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings Eligible to Attend

BHERE

EERE CEREEERRE
Executive Directors HBTES
Mr. Liu Guoging 28 E A& 2/3 0/1
Mr. Liu Jiagiang 2 hnog %k A& 3/3 11
Mr. Li Dongpo $ R kA 3/3 0/1
Ms. Wong Wai Chu =EIK ﬁ +

(appointed on 29 November 2024) (R-FB-_WF+—H-+/ILHEZE) 1/1 N/A T~ i B
INEDs BAUKHITESE
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan EREAE 3/3 1/1
Mr. Wang Luping FEFEEA 3/3 1/1
Mr. Gao Jizhong aEAEE 3/3 1/1
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the Year and up to the date of the Annual
Report, Mr. Liu Guoging acts as the Chairman and the CEO. In view of the
fact that Mr. Liu Guoging has been operating and managing the Company
since 7 September 2017, the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate
and in the best interests of the Group to have Mr. Liu Guoging taking up
both roles for effective management and business development. Therefore,
the Board considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code is appropriate in such circumstances. Nevertheless, the Company will
look for suitable candidates and will make necessary arrangement pursuant
to the requirement under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as and when
necessary.

DIVERSITY

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. All Board nominations, appointments and re-
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board members and the nomination policy of
the Company. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

The Board will strive to maintain gender diversity when recruiting and
selecting the workforce across the Group’s operation.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy at least
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness, and where necessary, will
make revisions that may be required and recommend any such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.

At the meeting held on 31 July 2025, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and was satisfied with its implementation
and effectiveness during the Year. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Nomination Committee”.
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Workforce Diversity

As at 30 April 2025, the gender ratio of male and female in the workforce of
the Group (including senior management) was 86% and 14% respectively.
For further details of gender ratio together with the relevant data, please refer
to the disclosure as set out in the separate ESG report of the Company. The
Group’s approach for talent recruitment and retention is to employ a diverse
team that works together and encourage differences and individuality in
employees with respect to equal opportunities and diversity. Notwithstanding
that, in view of efficiency enhancement, a measurable objective for
achieving gender diversity at the workforce level has not been set. The
Group is determined to commit to a diverse approach which provides equal
consideration and opportunities to all qualified candidates regardless of
gender in terms of hiring and promotion process.

INDEPENDENT VIEWS OF THE BOARD

In compliance with code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company has
established mechanisms to ensure that independent views and input are
available to the Board (the “Mechanisms”). The Board currently comprises
three INEDs who have years of experience from different aspects, including
but not limited to accounting and finance, legal and business management.
The INEDs are able to provide independent and appropriate opinions to
the Board so as to ensure that the Board can obtain independent views
and opinions that it requires when exercising its powers and making major
decisions. The Company makes certain that the Board has access to
independent views and input through the Mechanisms listed below:

1. The Nomination Committee will review the Board composition, as
well as the independence, qualification and time commitment of the
INEDs annually, in particular the proportion of the INEDs and the
independence of the INEDs who have served for more than nine years,
where applicable.

2. A written confirmation has been received by the Company under Rule
3.18 of the Listing Rules from each of the INEDs in relation to his/her
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its INEDs
to be independent.

3. In view of good corporate governance practices and to avoid conflict
of interests, the Directors (who are also directors and/or senior
management of the controlling shareholder and/or subsidiaries of the
controlling shareholder) would abstain from voting on the relevant
Board resolutions in relation to the transactions with the controlling
shareholder and/or his/her/its associates.
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4. Al members of the Board are given an opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

5. All members of the Board can seek independent professional advice
when necessary to perform their responsibilities in accordance with the
Company’s policy.

The Board has also taken into account the respective contributions of the
INEDs to the Board and their firm commitments to their independent roles.
During the Year, all the INEDs do not hold any cross-directorships or have any
significant links with other Directors through involvement in other companies
or bodies that could give rise to conflicts of interest in their roles as INEDs
and they are not involved in the daily management of the Company nor in
any relationships or circumstances which would affect the exercise of their
independent judgment. They continue to demonstrate their ability to provide
an independent, balanced and objective view to the affairs of the Company.

The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Mechanisms annually. At the meeting held on 31 July 2025, the Board has
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Mechanisms during the
Year and considered that the Mechanisms remain effective.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and upon
reasonable request, members of the Board committees are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and code provision D.3
of the CG Code. The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee were
revised on 1 January 2019 to conform with the requirements under the CG
Code and the Listing Rules. Such written terms of reference are published
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It
comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Gao Jizhong, Mr. Wang Luping
and Mr. Tian Zhiyuan who is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include but are not
limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, and approving their
remuneration and terms of engagement, and handling any questions
regarding their resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and discussing with the external auditors the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;

° developing and implementing a policy on engaging external auditors
to supply non-audit services and reporting to the Board, identifying
and making recommendations on any matters where an action or
improvement is needed;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts and half-year report, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

° overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, and risk
management and internal control systems;

° discussing the risk management and internal control systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
have such effective systems;

° considering major investigation findings of internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

° where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

° reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any material queries

raised by the auditor to management about the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response;
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° ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letters; and

° considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the Audit
Committee, amongst other matters, considered and approved (i) the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2024; (i) the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 31 October 2024 for presentation to the Board for its consideration
and approval; and (jii) audit-related matters.

The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings during the
Year is as follows:

Name of Directors

s HMREFEHLRFEERIIBZEENS
TEEEBZHHFREZER &

s WMREMAEFESAEZIRE -

ERZEERNAFEETTMAEE MR
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ERBEAZALEREAMBHRE UEX
BEEEEZNILE RNVEZHEBEEE -

EBUNBTEENAFREHFEERZES
BEIRBWT

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Eligible to Attend

HERE EE%
Esng HEERRE
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) HEREE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Wang Luping TEFELEE 2/2
Mr. Gao Jizhong mEALE 2/2

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules that at
least one of the members of the Audit Committee (which must comprise a
minimum of three members and must be chaired by an Independent Non-
executive Director) is an Independent Non-executive Director who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The audited Financial Statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
at its meeting held on 31 July 2025. The Audit Committee is of the opinion
that such consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules and that adequate
disclosures have been made. The chairman and the members of the Audit
Committee attended such meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee were revised on 16 February 2023
to conform with the requirements under the CG Code and the Listing Rules.
Such written terms of reference are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Tian Zhiyuan, Mr. Wang Luping and an
Executive Director, Mr. Liu Guoging. Mr. Tian Zhiyuan is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include but
are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s performance-based
remuneration by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management. This should
include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors;

° considering the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group;

° reviewing and approving the compensation payable to the Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office
or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with the contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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° reviewing and approving the compensation arrangements relating to
the dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with the contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and

° reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings, among
other things, (i) reviewed and recommended to the Board for consideration
and approval of certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and
senior management; (ii) reviewed the share option scheme of the Company;
and (i) considered and recommended to the Board for consideration and
approval of the remuneration package of a newly proposed ED.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is as follows:

Name of Directors
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No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Eligible to Attend

HERE EE%
BEEHR HESZXE
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) HERLEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Liu Guoging 2B E k& 2/2
Mr. Wang Luping FEFEA 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 25 June 2025 to
conform with the requirements under the CG Code and the Listing Rules.
Such written terms of reference are published on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises two INEDs, namely Mr.
Gao Jizhong and Mr. Tian Zhiyuan, and an Executive Director, Ms. Wong Wai
Chu. Mr. Gao Jizhong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include but
are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually,
assisting the Board in maintaining a board skills matrix, and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the Directors,
in particular, the Chairman and the chief executive;

° supporting the Company’s regular evaluation of the Board’s
performance;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives for
implementing such policy as may be adopted by the Board on a regular
basis and to monitor the progress on achieving the objectives; and

° annually assessing and disclosing its assessment of each director’s
time commitment and contribution to the Board, as well as the
director’s ability to discharge his or her responsibilities effectively.

During the Year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held and the
Nomination Committee, among other things, (i) reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (i) assessed the independence of the INEDs;
(i) recommended to the Board for consideration the re-appointment of
the retiring Directors at the 2024 AGM with adequate consideration of the
Board Diversity Policy; (iv) reviewed the measurable objectives (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) for implementing the policy on Board
diversity and the progress on achieving the objectives; and (v) assessed the
qualifications and work experience of a newly proposed ED.

B -EERZEERABRAQA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEERRE

REZEGZIZAGNBHREHFEETRR

s EUBFRIEFTGZIRE ABRLA
(BREEEE - MENERITE) BB
EXEEAFETORERRE  UHEM
REAEXRRZARKBMMRBESES
(G- ok up =t

s YEABAEERVUECEZESENEZ
AL UTHBEREZABALTHEESH
UM EFSROER

s FHIRBUFNTEEZHIIE:

s HNEFZEXREBURER(LERZT
FREBITHRAB)EIFERESS
RHEE:

s XEARFEHFABERTENHRR:

s TEHRFNEFEZTLLBERRESFEH
RERMCHEBENEEER AERER
EE: R

s EFREBREFNHRARKRA BESFE
MER AERBAMETRIEHENET
AP IR EE H AP AR

REZBERAFEBETTMAEH  NE
L REZEEEBER (RS EEEZ
BRHE - NBRER (VTR BLIERTERZ
B (IWRAEDEREEEZTIEBRRER
BEEFEN _ZS_NFRIRAFREER
BREEES WVRAHETEESZ TILR
WA E B R (BRI MBRER) AR
ERREE: RWFARFRERTESNERER
TRER -

—EomE/—AFEFER 33



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

D= &= =

TEE

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at its meetings &iIRFZZEEXERNAEELFERELEZE S

during the Year is as follows: EEIREMT
No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Name of Directors Eligible to Attend
RE EEE
EEgA HEEBRE
Mr. Gao Jizhong (Chairman) BEARE(EE)

(appointed on 25 June 2025) (RZF-—_RAFNA-—F+HHEZE) 2/2
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan HEELE 2/2
Ms. Wong Wai Chu mEKK T

(appointed on 25 June 2025) (R-ZZFE-—_RAFNNA-+AHEZE) N/A i@
Mr. Liu Guoaging (former Chairman) 20 B Sk (BT £ )

(ceased on 25 June 2025) (R=ZFEZRFNA=+HHHE) 2/2
NOMINATION POLICY R AEBX

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the selection, REEZZE@BRE TIRFLEAERES (B
appointment and re-appointment of a Director including an INED in fEBIUFEHTEZ)NEE ZAREERE

accordance with the following procedures and process: EEROEZ
For selection and appointment EFREEREZMR

i The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the current i
composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

ii The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers i
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from
third party agency firms and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria (the “Criteria”) which include but are
not limited to:

(@  Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of

available time and relevant interest (details of the Board Diversity
Policy set out above);
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(¢ Qualifications, both academic and professional, including
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in which
the business(es) of the Company and its subsidiaries is/are involved;

(d)  Independence (for INEDs);

(e)  Reputation for integrity;

) Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the Board;
and

(9  Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers appropriate
in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third party reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of candidates
who are in and outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Promptly after considering a candidate’s suitability for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board
for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of the remuneration package of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation to
the Board in relation to the proposed appointment, including the policy
and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed by
the members of the Board, who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the
appointment as the case may be; and

Al appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar
filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the
appointment as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the
relevant regulatory authorities, if required.
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For re-appointment

X. The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend the retiring
Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration
to the Criteria, including but not limited to:

(@  the overall contribution and service of the retiring Director(s) to
the Company, including but not limited to the attendance of the
meetings of the Board and/or its committees and the general
meetings of the Company where applicable, in addition to the
level of participation and performance on the Board and/or its
committees; and

(b)  the continuity of the retiring Director(s) to satisfy the Criteria.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which include but
are not limited to:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the directors of
the Group; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this report.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

To outline the Group’s expectations and requirements on prevention,
detection, reporting and investigation of any suspected fraud, corruption
and other similar irregularities; and to provide information and guidance
on recognizing and dealing with bribery and corruption, the Group has
established its anti-corruption policy that complies with code provision D.2.7
of the CG Code.
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With the commitment to ethical operations, the Group adheres to the principle
of integrity and has zero tolerance towards corruption or other unethical
behaviours. In order to completely eliminate illegal activities such as bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, the Group has established a code of
conduct in its Staff Handbook. The Group requires all employees to abide
by the code of conduct to ensure that they consistently uphold the highest
standards of professional ethics. For details, please refer to the disclosure in
the separate ESG report of the Company.

The anti-corruption policy is reviewed and updated periodically to align with
the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry best practice.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

Committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability, the Group has established a whistleblowing policy
which forms an important part of its effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The whistleblowing policy provides the necessary mechanisms for all
stakeholders, including employees, Shareholders, customers and suppliers,
to report any suspected misconduct or malpractice within the Group in
confidence through the Group’s whistleblowing channels. Complaints are
handled by designated staff and findings are reported to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee will ensure that appropriate action is taken on the
findings.

The whistleblowing policy is reviewed and updated periodically to align with
the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry best practice.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of one year and each of the INEDs has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year. The extension
of the terms or the renewal of any such service agreements or letters of
appointment, where necessary, will be in compliance with the Listing Rules
and any other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the first AGM after
his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation and
will be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association. At
each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at the AGM at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall
be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout
the meeting at which he/she retires. The Directors to retire by rotation shall
include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by
rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and does not offer himself/herself
for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment and so
that as between the persons who became or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees
of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
AND REMUNERATION

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities
and opinion on the Financial Statements is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of the Annual Report.

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Independent Auditor in
respect of the Year is set out below:
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Audit services B2k 850
Total 4 850
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
Financial Statements.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the Group’s internal financial
controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk management policies
and systems established by the management of the Company, including
those related to the issues as set out in the ESG report that are significant to
the operation of the Company and/or substantially affecting the Shareholders
and other key stakeholders, to ensure compliance with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements of the ESG Reporting Code and the Listing Rules (collectively
“internal controls”).

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

For the Year, the Board has conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. Such review has been made by discussion with the Audit
Committee, management and the Independent Auditor, if applicable, from
time to time, but at least once a year. The Board will put in place measures to
address the identified areas that will be enhanced. The Board considers that
the existing risk management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective.

The Company also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems,
and has procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage
actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal structures have been
designed to prevent the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of
interest.
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The Audit Committee has received the summarized information on the risk
management and internal controls conducted by the internal audit team. The
work carried in relation to the identified areas are summarized as follows:

(i) the results of selective testing of internal control procedures, assets,
and financial records of the Company;

(ii) a general evaluation of risk management and internal control systems
installed by the Company; and

(i)~ an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the Year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the summarized information and
discussed with the management.

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and is
fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls within the
Group to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group’s assets,
and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the systems in place
are adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced promptly. The procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure
by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to
the public through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and the Company’s website;
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° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the
Executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the financial controller
of the Company are authorised to communicate with parties outside
the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and
relevant flow of information is maintained amongst members of the Board and
that all procedures have been adhered to in accordance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie (“Ms. Tung”) was nominated by Boardroom
Corporate Services (HK) Limited to be the Company Secretary on 30 June
2022 and resigned as the Company Secretary on 26 May 2025. The primary
person at the Company with whom Ms. Tung contacted in respect of the
company secretarial matters was Ms. Mancy Wai, the financial manager of
the Company.

Ms. Tung attended over 15 hours’ relevant continuous professional
development training during the Year pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Upon the resignation of Ms. Tung as the Company Secretary on 26 May
2025, Mr. Kwok Siu Man was nominated by SK2 Corporate Services (HK)
Limited to be the Company Secretary with effect from 26 May 2025.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to the Shareholders and investment
public.

The Company updates the Shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its announcements, circulars as well
as annual and interim reports. The corporate website of the Company
has provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the Year, the Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents. A consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on the respective websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a Shareholder's communication policy with
an objective to provide the Shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as Shareholders in an
informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company. The
Company reviews the Shareholders’ communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure that
the Shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include AGM, EGM, interim report, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. The procedure for demanding a poll will be
included in circulars accompanying the notice convening a general meeting
and such procedure will be read out by the chairman of the general meeting
or his/her delegate. The AGMs and the EGMs are primary forums for
communication between the Company and the Shareholders. The members
of the Board and the Board committees as well as representatives of the
Independent Auditor are present to answer Shareholders’ questions at the
AGMs. The Company will provide Shareholders with relevant information
on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided shall be
reasonably necessary to enable the Shareholders to make an informed
decision on the proposed resolution(s). As a channel to promote effective
communication, the Group maintains a website where the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are posted.
Shareholders and investors may write directly to the Company at its principal
place of business in Hong Kong with any enquiries.

Pursuant to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the Company will invite
representatives of the Independent Auditor to attend the 2025 AGM to
answer Shareholders’ questions regarding the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the Independent Auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor’s independence. The chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee will
also be invited to attend the forthcoming 2025 AGM.
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Mr. Liu Guoging, the Chairman, did not attend the Company’s 2024 AGM
due to other essential business engagements. In order to ensure an effective
communication with the Shareholders, the Directors attending the 2024 AGM
elected Mr. Liu Jiagiang, an Executive Director, to chair the meeting on behalf
of the Chairman. The respective chairmen and/or members of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
and a representative of the Independent Auditor were present at the 2024
AGM to answer relevant questions from the Shareholders. To mitigate the
above, future AGMs will be scheduled properly to avoid the timetable clashes.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s Shareholders communication
activities conducted during the Year and is satisfied with the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication policy.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or move
resolutions at the AGMs under the Articles of Association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands. However, Shareholders who wish to make proposals or
move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in accordance with the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM” set out below.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EGM

Written requisition of any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the voting rights at
general meetings of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, in the
paid share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if any), shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and the foregoing members
shall be able to add resolutions to the meeting agenda; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene
a physical meeting at only one location which will be the principal meeting
place, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board or the Company by
post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the basic
principles in determining the distribution of the dividends to the Shareholders (the
“Dividend Policy”).

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

(i) the financial results and financial condition of the Group;

(i) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

(iv)  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group; and

(v)  the general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Law of the Cayman lIslands, the Articles of Association and any
other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and reserve the right at its sole and absolute
discretion to update, amend, and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as
it deems fit and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be paid
in any particular amount for any specific period.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and
publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company
is to ensure that information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling the Shareholders, investors as well as the public
to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure
an effective distribution of the resources and protection of Shareholders’
interests. The senior management will continue to use its reasonable
endeavours in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate
governance level and quality.
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The Directors present to the Shareholders their report for the Year and the
Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and acting
as agent in the sales and trading of fertilisers and other related products.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the wholesale of watches and
provision of watch repairing services to its customers in Hong Kong; (i) acting
as agent in the sales and trading of fertiliser raw materials, fertilisers and other
related products and (i) manufacture and sales of compound fertilisers.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating segment is
set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 142 of the Annual Report. The
summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

FAIR REVIEW OF BUSINESS

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance during the Year and the likely future development in the Group’s
business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” sections of the Annual Report. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the “Five-Year Financial Summary” of the Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, which may
materially adversely affect its business, financial conditions or results of
operations. As some of the projects are located in the PRC, the political,
economic and legal developments and changes to government policies in the
PRC may have a significant impact on the Group.

The financial risks of the Group included currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. These financial risks are elaborated in Note 29b to the Financial
Statements.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group. As far as the
Company is aware, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the places where it operates in all material respects during the
Year and up to the date of the Annual Report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers, Shareholders
and other stakeholders. During the Year, there was no material or significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or other
stakeholders.

Employees

The Group recognises that employees are the valuable assets for the Group’s
continuous development. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package by reference to market norms as well as individual qualifications,
relevant experience and performance to attract and retain valuable
employees.

Customers

The Group is committed to providing good quality service to its customers
and enhance the loyalty of customers by increasing the interaction with them
through email, telephone or direct communication, which provide a good
foundation to the Group’s overall performance in the long run.

Suppliers

The Group has maintained good relationships with its suppliers. The Group
cooperates with suppliers that are committed to quality of products.
Shareholders and other stakeholders

The Group has made an ongoing dialogue with its investors and Shareholders
as provided in the “Investor Relations” and “Shareholders’ Communication”
paragraphs of the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report.
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ESG

The Group continually reviews its ESG efforts, corporate governance and risk
management practices with the aim of creating and delivering sustainable
value to all key stakeholders. The Group has been exploring more efficient
opportunities to reduce the consumption of resources in order to reduce its
impact on the environment.

A separate ESG report will be published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company at the same time as the publication of the
Annual Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 68 of the Annual
Report. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the Year (2024: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 71 and 72 of the Annual Report and Note 33 to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 April 2025, the Company had no distributable reserves (2024: Nil).
Details of the movements in the distributable reserves during the Year are set
out in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.
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AGM

A notice convening the 2025 AGM will be issued and dispatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner required by the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend, speak and
vote at the 2025 AGM, the Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
14 October 2025 to Friday, 17 October 2025 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending, speaking and voting at the 2025 AGM, the non-registered
Shareholders must lodge all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at Room 2103B, 21/F,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 13 October 2025.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 90.5% of the total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 74.8% of the total purchases.

For the Year, the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 45.8% of the total sales and sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 23.6% of the total sales.
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The largest and second largest suppliers are significantly influenced by Mr.
Meng Guangyin, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the number of the Company’s issued Shares) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Guoqing (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Mr. Li Dongpo

Ms. Wong Wai Chu (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Wang Luping
Mr. Gao Jizhong

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the first AGM after his/her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Ms. Wong Wai Chu was appointed as
a Director by the Board on 29 November 2024 as an addition to the then
Board. Thus, she will retire from office as Director and is eligible to offer
herself for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors will retire by rotation at each AGM. In addition, code provision B.2.2
of the CG Code stipulates that each Director shall retire from office by rotation
at least once every three years.
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Pursuant to article 84(2) of the Articles of Association, the Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of
Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those
of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been the
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected or appointed Directors
on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Any Director appointed by the Board
pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Director or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Guoging and Mr. Li
Dongpo will retire from office as Directors by rotation and are eligible to offer
themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and is not aware of any event undermining their independence. As such, the
Company notes that all the INEDs are independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, Secretary, Independent
Auditor and other officers shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or any of them may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of any
potential legal action against the Directors and senior management of the
Group in respect of potential legal actions that may be incurred in the course
of performing their duties.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to 19 of the
Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Liu Guoging and Mr. Liu Jiagiang have renewed their service agreements
with the Company for a term of one year commencing on 7 September 2024.
Mr. Li Dongpo has renewed his service agreement with the Company for a
term of one year commencing on 10 December 2024 and Ms. Wong Wai
Chu has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
one year commencing on 29 November 2024. Their service agreements may
be terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term of one year, but subject to
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable
laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Wang Luping have renewed their letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing on 20
September 2024 and 27 December 2024 respectively. Mr. Gao Jizhong
has renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one
year commencing on 15 February 2025. Their appointment letters may be
terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2025 AGM has an
unexpired service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
employees of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to
the Financial Statements, respectively. The remuneration packages of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board as described on page 31 of the Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the Year are set
out in Note 31 to the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the end of the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the Annual Report, no contracts of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor any contracts
of any significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the end of the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 30 April 2025, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or (c) pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND FTERRERREMATRERSG
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND 1‘ IR Z2EEZRAE
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at 30 April 2025, the following BEZESZFFA R_ZEZ_AFWNA=+H" M
entity and person (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Eﬁ’&i‘f&)\i(ﬂ#é%izﬁ AIEZITHA

Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

)R RAREROPHEECHERARBIR
BESFRAEHGIFEIBHRATE Z2ELMA

section 336 of the SFO: ZREmPORE
Percentage of
Number of shareholding
Shares interest in
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest interested the Company
(RN §
BRREEEB 56 REEtE EEROEE B
Prosper One Beneficial owner (Note) 600,000,000 75%

B EmEa A WT)

Mr. Meng Guangyin (“Mr. Meng”) Interest in a controlled corporation (Note) 600,000,000 75%

HERAEE(HEE] RERAEZ s (i)

Notes:

1. The 600,000,000 Shares were held under certain trust units under the
Changjiang Absolute Return China Fund, in which Mr. Meng was beneficially
interested via his wholly-owned company Prosper One, and managed by
Changjiang Asset Management (HK) Ltd, Mr. Meng’s asset and fund manager.
Mr. Meng is the sole shareholder and sole director of Prosper One and is
deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 Shares in which Prosper One is
interested under the SFO.

2. The percentage of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table
above is calculated on the basis of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 April
2025.

3. All interests stated above represent long positions

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2025, so far as the Directors or chief
executive of the Company are aware, no other persons (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) or entities had any interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the management of
the Company and their respective close associates that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided in Note 31 to the Financial Statements. None of the
related party transactions as disclosed in Note 31 to the Financial Statements
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem its listed securities nor did the Company or
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities (including sale of
treasury shares of the Company, if any) during the Year.

As at 30 April 2025, the Company did not hold any treasury shares.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares in
public hands) during the Year and thereafter up to the date of the Annual
Report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the service contracts of the Executive Directors)
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders on 21 April
2015 (the “Adoption Date”).

1. Purpose and Participants

The primary purpose of the Scheme is providing eligible participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and to
motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants (the “Participants”)
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. Participants of the Scheme include any
employees, Executive Directors, non-executive Directors (including
INEDs), advisors, consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

2. Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which might be issued under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding options
lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company) must not exceed 80,000,000, representing 10% of the
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares of the Company, if any) as at
the Adoption Date and 1 May 2024. No Shares are available for issue
as from 21 April 2025 as the Scheme expired on that date.
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Acceptance of offer

Offer of a share option shall be deemed to have been accepted by
the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company within
28 days from the date of the offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board at its sole discretion and notified to the
Participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which a share option is granted, and (i) the average of
the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date on which a share option is granted; and (i) the nominal value of a
Share.

Maximum entitlement of Shares of each
Participant

(i) Subject to paragraphs (i) and (jii) below, the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to each Participant (except for the parties
mentioned in paragraph (i) below) (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue (excluding
treasury shares of the Company, if any).

(i) Notwithstanding (i) above, any further grant of share options to
a Participant in excess of the 1% limit or the limit mentioned in
paragraph (i) below (as the case may be) shall be subject to
the approval by the Shareholders in general meeting with such
Participant and his or her close associates (or his associates if
the participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
The number and the terms of the share options to be granted to
such Participant shall be fixed before the Shareholders’ approval
and the date of the Board meeting for proposing such further
grant should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price.
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(i) A substantial Shareholder or an INED, or any of their respective
associates can be granted options comprising the underlying
Shares (a) in aggregate not over 0.1% of the issued Shares or
(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Share at the date of the grant, not in excess of HK$5 million.

6. Exercise of share options

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon which a share
option was granted, at any time during the option period after the share
option has been granted by the Board but in any event, not longer than
10 years from the date of grant. A share option shall lapse automatically
and not be exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the
expiry of the option period.

7. Vesting period of share options

There is no requirement for any vesting period of the share options
granted under the Scheme; However, the Company will comply with
Rule 17.03F of the Listing Rules to the effect that the vesting period for
the share options granted under the Scheme shall not be less than 12
months.

8. Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, after which period no further
share options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall
in all other respects remain in full force and effect and share options
which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The Scheme expired on 21 April 2025.

On 4 January 2018, the Company had offered to grant to certain Participants
share options, which were subject to, among others, a refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit for the Scheme (the “Refreshment”). The resolution
concerning the Refreshment was duly passed by the Shareholders at an
EGM held on 25 January 2018. However, as the above offers of the grant
of the share options had not been accepted by the selected Participants in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Scheme, no share options
were granted.

No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the
Year and there were no share options outstanding as at 30 April 2025.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into other equity-linked agreements that (i)
would or might result in the Company issuing Shares or (i) would require
the Company to enter into any agreements that would or might result in the
Company issuing Shares during the Year and up to the date of the Annual
Report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

There were no charitable donations made by the Group during the Year (2024:
Nil).

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares of the Company.

MATERIAL EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group did not have any material subsequent event after the reporting
period and up to the date of the Annual Report.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Annual Report (including the audited
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the Company
for the Year and had submitted the same to the Board for consideration
and approval. Members of the Audit Committee are of the opinion that the
Financial Statements, the results announcement and the Annual Report have
been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and the relevant statutory provisions and that an adequate
disclosure has been made.

—EERZERBRQA

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERRE

R R 80 165 5

$“*‘$¢?W&@§$¢ﬁ5ﬁiﬂﬂ
VHEMBERHAHRONGRATEEERAR
BT ) E I$QEJ4EHEIT
FERARAFEITEROOWE -

?L?WH

ARABETABRRATARTERRAERN
MEGERMBRBERR -

EXBEHRRSEE

RBEENHERLEEAFHRBEH  AEEL
BEFMEAHRER-

ERNFEXRE

ERZERCBHNLATH(BEKLERVY B R
RIREARAAFRERZFREREERE  XEH
ZEXMHEREFERZRILE - BREZE
ERERRYBHRR EERERAFR
REREER . ETHR A RARBEE KX
R YEELEDKE -

T-_mE/ —_RFEHR 59



60 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERHE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Fan, Chan, will retire as the Independent Auditor and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a resolution
to re-appoint Fan, Chan as the Independent Auditor until the conclusion of

the next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration will be
proposed at the forthcoming 2025 AGM.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ DETAILS

Changes in the Directors’ details since the publication of the interim report of
the Company for the six months ended 31 October 2024 are set out below:

On 25 June 2025, the composition of the Nomination Committee was
changed as follows:

1. Mr. Liu Guoqing ceased to be the chairman and a member;

2. Mr. Gao Jizhong was appointed as the chairman; and

3. Ms. Wong Wai Chu was appointed as a member.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON THE
WEBSITES

The Annual Report will be available for viewing on the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at www.
prosperoneintl.com in due course in the manner required by the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board

Liu Guoqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 July 2025
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SR G 3 ERAT A R 3]
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PROSPER ONE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosper
One International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to
141, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 April 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April 2025, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BERETSBE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMOARESFFEERARENER

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements
Zigmis & MBI EN T4 %18

We identified valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because the carrying amount of inventories was significant
and the assessment of recoverability of the carrying amount
involved significant judgement and estimation uncertainty.
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The Group had inventories of gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$14,612,000 and an allowance for write-
down of inventories of approximately HK$7,314,000 as at 30
April 2025.
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Our audit procedures in relation to management’s valuation
assessment of inventories included:

BZHEREREMETFELENENEFRFEHE

o Understanding the Group’s key controls in relation
to the identification of slow-moving inventories and
measurement of the allowance for write-down of
inventories;

e Eff BEEHEABANIFHETFTERIEMRATER
BEBERBREES

o Understanding and evaluating the appropriateness of
the basis used by the management in estimating the
level of inventory allowance, taking into consideration
the inventory aging as at 30 April 2025 and
subsequent sales after 30 April 2025;

e RERNR_Z_AFMOA=THZFEERERR-
Z_RHFHAB=THERBZBEHRE  BRRIME
EREEMAFTERESHARAKENEES L

Annual Report 2024/25



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)

RMMARET P EERRETSEGE

Valuation of inventories (Continued)

FE 1 E ()

In estimating the allowance for write-down of inventories,
it is the Group’s policy to review the net realisable value
of inventories periodically with reference to aging analysis,
seasonality and current market conditions. These assessments
are subject to uncertainties arising from changes in market
trends, customer tastes and current business environment.
ERFAHAEEREER EEENBRRXEL2EREKRD
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Assessing and examining the assumptions and
estimates applied by management in determining
the allowance for slow-moving inventories, including
discussing with the management for the assumptions
and judgement made in assessing net realisable
values and evaluating reasonableness of the
management’s assessment of saleability of inventories
with reference to historical record of the inventories;
iﬁ&%§ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁrmﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
RAzBRERMEET  BIEEEREENmET o] &
REERMECBREZRAE R2EZREFER
B AEEREHFEEZAHEBRAZAERESR
A

Assessing the historical accuracy of allowance
for slow-moving inventories to evaluate the
appropriateness of the basis made by the
management in the current year; and
HHEREERENFHFERES G ER  Lh
AEEEERAFEFLNELERSAE &

Comparing the carrying amount of the inventories,
on a sample basis, to their net realisable value
through review of subsequent sales. Where there are
no subsequent sales of the respective inventories
subsequent to the year-end date, we challenged
management on the assumptions and basis applied
to estimate the net realisable value of the inventories,
corroborating the explanations with aging, consumer
demand and market trends of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 37 A7 BED

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Rooms 1007-1012
10/F., K. Wah Centre
191 Java Road
North Point

Hong Kong

31 July 2025

Lam Wai Yan
Practising Certificate Number: PO6906
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERZREMEZEKE R

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=+HIFE

2024
—E N4
Notes HK$'000
Bt i T T
Revenue g 5 71,854
Cost of sales SHE KA (30,394)
Gross profit E A 41,460
Other gains and losses, net Efh a5 18R R 7 2,370
Selling and distribution costs HE R HKA (21,100)
Administrative expenses THEAX (18,015)
Finance costs B & Y AR 8 (171)
Profit before tax B B4 A g 9 4,544
Income tax expense Fr{S i = 10 (3,263)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of KARIHEE AEBEFA
the Company a2 A 1,281
Other comprehensive expense Hi 2 M
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to H £ 2t & E# HH 187
profit or loss EH
— Exchange differences arising from — MEBINETEFTE £ &Y
translation of foreign operations P X =5 (2,763)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for ~ ARNA A A EIHER
the year attributable to owners of 2EME (L) @zE
the Company (1,482)
Earnings per share — basic and diluted A — EARREE
(HK cent per share) €=3:9::2 (1)) 14 0.16

B8 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2024/25



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FeMBKAER

Asat 30 April 2025 R-T-_HFMNA=+H

2024
—EComE
Notes HK$'000
bt &t FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB K& 15 590
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16 941
Deferred tax assets ELEHIEEE 17 237
1,768
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FEH 18 4,523
Trade receivables, other receivables and U E 5 5RI8 - Efth E U
prepayments RIB R FEA FRIE 19 100,962
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREEED 20 65,837
171,322
Total assets wEE 173,090
Capital and reserves & AN K {45
Share capital [N 24 8,000
Reserves i 1 7,371
Total equity 1R E 15,371
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
“Ra WA R &
Asat30 April 2025 R-Z-_HAFWA=1+H

2025 2024
—E-RF —E M
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K ot FE T F&T

Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 17 160 —

Current liabilities nB B &

Trade and other payables B 5 & H fth fE < ;B 21 142,112 110,540
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 — 941
Amount due to ultimate holding company B AR A R FIE 23 46,074 46,095
Tax liabilities HEAE 148 143
188,334 157,719
Total liabilities BEHAE 188,494 157,719
Total equity and liabilities wEZNREE 208,918 173,090

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 141 were approved F68E 141 B2 R AU BHRECHESTZ N =
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 July 2025 andare ZE-_HAFEt A=+ B ERTETIZ I

signed on its behalf by: HUTREESE:
Mr. Liu Guoging Mr. Li Dongpo
BIEE L FREEE
Director Director
EFE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

Share Share Capital Statutory  Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total equity
BA RHEE EXFEE  LERE ERfE RiEE BRAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THT AT FAT THT AT FTAET
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hraz1) (Hizt2)
Balance at 1 May 2023 RZT-=F
TA—AMEH 8,000 118,368 24,094 5,736 (1,230) (138,115) 16,853
Total comprehensive expense 2EBXAE
Profit for the year F R 7l - - - = = 1,281 1,281
Exchange differences arising on HEBIINEBRESE
translation of foreign operations RELER - - - - (2,763) — (2,763)
Total comprehensive (expense)income 2T (fi )/ Wz 2% - - - — 2,763) 1,281 (1,482)
Transfer to statutory reserve EREETERE - - - 1,161 = (1,161) =
Balance at 30 April 2024 and RZBZME
1 May 2024 MA=+HERK
ZZTmE
AA—HBM&H 8,000 118,368 24,094 6,897 (3,993 (137,995) 15,371
Total comprehensive income 2ENFAE
Profit for the year F A 7l - - - — — 5,416 5,416
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBESE
translation of foreign operations MEREZ®E - - - - (369) - (3693)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2 (FI%) /B8 - - - - (363) 5,416 5,053
Transfer to statutory reserve EREETHE - - - 727 — (727) =
Balance at 30 April 2025 R-Z-1%
WA=T+HMEH 8,000 118,368 24,004 7,624 (4,356) (133,306) 20,424
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/2 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mAEmEER

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

Note 1:
The balance of capital reserve comprises the following:

On 23 June 2011, Mr. Lam Man Wah (“Mr. Lam”), one of the previous controlling
shareholders of the Company, acquired the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of
the Company from an independent third party. The difference between the fair value of
the equity interests acquired and the consideration paid amounting to HK$1,610,000
was credited to the capital reserve.

On 31 October 2014, Mr. Lam agreed to waive part of his lending to the Group. The
waived amount of HK$14,282,000 was recognised as deemed capital consideration
and credited to the capital reserve.

On 9 April 2015, the Company allotted and issued 5,833 and 94,166 of its shares to
Ms. Ma Lili and Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited, a company owned by the previous
controlling shareholders, respectively, to acquire their respective shareholding interests
in the subsidiaries of the Company.

As a result, a balance of HK$3,902,000 was credited to the capital reserve representing
the difference between the carrying value of the non-controlling interest of Jenus
Top International Limited acquired over the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company issued in exchange thereof. The combined share capital of the other
subsidiaries of the Company of HK$4,300,000 was reclassified to capital reserve upon
the completion of the Group reorganisation.

Note 2:

As stipulated by the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the Company’s subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of their profit after tax as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners. The statutory reserve can be used to
make good previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up capital
by issuing additional capital to the owners in proportion to the owners’ existing equity
holdings, provided that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEHeERER

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

2024
—ETMEF
HK$'000
T T
Operating activities RETR
Profit before tax BR % Al & A 4,544
Adjustments for: AT RIEEFE
Finance costs Bl & B AR 171
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BERZBEITE 52
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 581
Gain from lease modifications MEBTT 2z W= (73)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME BEEREKEZ
equipment g —
Interest income B A (281)
Allowance for write-down of inventories B HERMUR T E B E
recognised 392
Operating cash flows before movements in BELESEBATEE
working capital ReRE 5,386
Increase in inventories FEEm (3,329)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, other FEUWE 5 518 ~ H th fE IR GRIE &
receivables and prepayments T RIER (35 n) (30,811)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 2 5 & £ b JE <t R IEE fn, Ot 4>) (21,073)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEERE /(AR & (49,827)
Interest received R ERIESN 281
Income tax paid B TSR (3,933)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities KESEB TS (PR IR& R 58 (53,479)
Investing activities RETE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYXE WEKRXK (548)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE M&E
equipment Ffr 1S 3k 38 —
Net cash used in investing activities WEZEFAE S FE (548)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RAERERER
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=+HIFE

Financing activities RMEEE
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities EEHRE A BN AL B H
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEARERNE
Advances from ultimate holding company MR EBR AT BR
Repayments to ultimate holding company M) S AR 1 AR A RlE K

Net cash used in financing activities RE EEFT AR S FE

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Be& kRS EWRE M CRD)
cash equivalents st

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEE R F BT E

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FUNRERBEEEEY
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, E XIS RIS ZEY
represented by bank balances and cash (Bp: sRITHEHR KRR D)
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2024
—E-OF
HK$’000
FAT

(643)
(171)
500
(465)

(779)

(54,806)

(5,547)

126,190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

GENERAL INFORMATION

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company is Prosper One Enterprises
Limited and its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Meng Guangyin, who
was also the chairman of the Board of Directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company before 10 April 2024.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
acting as agent (for financial reporting purposes) in the sales and
trading of fertilisers and other related products, and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the wholesale of watches and provision
of watch repairing services to its customers in Hong Kong, manufacture
and sales of compound fertilisers and acting as agent (for financial
reporting purposes) in the sales and trading of fertiliser raw materials,
fertilisers and other related products. The address of the principal place
of business of the Company is Room 4801, 48/F., Hopewell Centre,
No. 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR A B RS R R BT R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=+HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

a. Amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts (‘HKICPA”)
for the first time, that are mandatorily effective for the current
accounting period of the Group for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

° Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

o Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier Finance
Arrangements

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR BT HR R M A

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

M
o

STANDARDS (continued)

b.

Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group changed its accounting policy for the classification of
borrowings:

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Covenants that the Group is required to comply with,
on or before the end of the reporting period, are considered in
classifying loan arrangements with covenants as current or non-
current. Covenants that the Group is required to comply with
after the reporting period do not affect the classification at the
reporting date.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification of liability
as current or non-current retrospectively. The application of the
amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR A B RS R R BT R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BAHIREET TR
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING B EEA S ER @

STANDARDS (continued)

c. New and amendments to HKFRS c. EEMEMRERZEH
Accounting Standards in issue but not yet R REETTE R YK R
effective EERGTTER
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEBVEREREEATIRAAS
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been FTHA FE B A8 5 1B 18 R AR RUAY T ET
issued but are not yet effective for the current accounting period. LEETRBYBREER S
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the R REBEERMBATEZSHE]
impact of these new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting RGBT BB YK HRE ER €5t
Standards but is not yet in a position to state whether these HAMTE R REEELZFN
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards would AIRKEIEAVBREENS
have a significant impact on its results of operations and financial AEAeRHAKEXERUTE
position: RILIER E R L

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RUTHEHR 2%
HHENETHBEX
o Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7, Amendments to the 1 January 2026
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments - R"F—HA—H
BEAVBHREERNEIORR BBV BRELERNE 7R (BEIRN) 25
TAMDERFERIEET
° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determine
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture RFE
BEAVBHREERNEI10R R BBEGHERFE285 (BFIR)KEEH
REBENFARE SRR ZBEEHELHE
o Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards, Annual Improvements to 1 January 2026
HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11 —ERF—H—H
BB BREEN G ER(EEIR) BB BEREER &5 £
FRNHE — F115
° Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
EB G ERE 215 (BT A) b= A 3512 1% —ET-R&—A—H
o HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
BB HREERNE 18RI B RENZZ R E —ZE-t%—A—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR RS R R M L

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, as explained in the material accounting policy

information sets out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXSHHEEMN@®

80 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a product or service
to the customer at the amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled under that performance obligation,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time. HKFRS 15
identifies the following three situations in which control of the promised
good or service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance, as the Group
performs;

(i)  When the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

@iy When the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the Group’s activities do not fall into any of
these three situations, then under HKFRS 15 the Group recognised
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a point in time, being
when control has passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or service provided by
another party before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognised revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange
for arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the
other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

(a) Sale of merchandise
Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised at a point in
time when control of the products is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

(b) Trading of fertiliser raw materials, fertilisers and

other related products (the “fertilisers and other
products”)
The Group determines that the nature of its promise is to
arrange for the fertiliser raw materials, fertilisers and other related
products to be provided by the suppliers to the customers
and hence, for financial reporting purposes under HKFRS 15,
the Group is an agent not a principal. Commission income is
recognised at a point in time when the services are rendered.

(c) Manufacture and sale of compound fertilisers
Revenue from the manufacture and sale of compound fertilisers
is recognised at a point in time when control of the products is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the products.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXSHHEEMN@®

82 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

(d) Service income on repairing watches
The Group provides repair services on watches to customers,
which is a single performance obligation. The service income is
recognised at a point in time when the service is completed.

(e) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

() Sale of wine
Revenue from the sale of wine is recognised at a point in time
when control of the products is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under “Other
gains and losses, net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Lease

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of various offices, warehouses, equipment and vehicles that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

depreciation and

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognised and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M AT

For the year ended 30 April 2025
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever the lease term
has changed.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff in Hong
Kong and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for staff in the
PRC are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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86 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
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that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to recognised the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Annual Report 2024/25

BERTAMBEMBEREREZENES
BEMRARERREGEBE@E - T
VARERR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is recognised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the lease liabilities and the related assets separately.
The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M AT

For the year ended 30 April 2025
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BE—ZT-_RAFNA=+HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net recognised value.
Cost of inventories are determined on the weighted average method.
Net recognised value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Impairment on tangible assets and right-of-use
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HE-_Z-_RAFNA=THLFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition”.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the asset is recognised, modified or impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognised an allowance for the “expected credit loss”
(“ECL”) for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M AT

For the year ended 30 April 2025
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BE—ZT-_RAFNA=+HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M AT

For the year ended 30 April 2025
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HE-_Z-_RAFNA=THLFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but

that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and amount due
to ultimate holding company) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M AT

For the year ended 30 April 2025

3.

96 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

BE—ZT-_RAFNA=+HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s material accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s material accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Principal versus agent considerations for
trading of fertilisers, fertiliser raw materials and
other related products

Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or as an agent,
for financial reporting purposes, in the sales of goods requires exercise
of judgement and consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.
In the evaluation of whether the Group is acting as a principal or an
agent, the Group noted that it does not obtain control of the fertilisers,
fertiliser raw materials and other related products from the suppliers
before passing on to customers. The Group also considers, individually
and in combination, whether the Group is primarily responsible
for fulfilling the promise to provide the fertilisers and other related
products, is subject to inventory risk and has discretion in establishing
prices for the goods. Significant judgement is required when making
these considerations. Having considered the relevant facts and
circumstances, management considers that the Group does not
obtain control in respect of the trading activities involving the fertilisers
and other related products. Accordingly, the Group considers that for
financial reporting purposes, it is acting as an agent for sale and trading
of fertilisers, fertiliser raw materials and other related products and the
corresponding revenue is recognised and presented on a net basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values and impairment

of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
The Group tests annually whether its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets have suffered any impairment in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies. The assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is
determined based on value in use calculations which require the use of
assumptions and estimates.

As at 30 April 2025, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are HK$928,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$3,000) (2024: HK$590,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$466,000)), and HK$641,000 (net
of accumulated impairment loss of HK$ Nil) (2024: HK$941,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$ Nil)) respectively.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market conditions and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly in response to changes in market trends, customer tastes
and business environment. The Group will reassess the estimations
by the end of the reporting period. As at 30 April 2025, the carrying
amount of inventories was HK$7,298,000 (net of allowance for write-
down of HK$7,314,000) (2024: HK$4,523,000 (net of allowance for
write-down of HK$9,266,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

5. REVENUE 5. W=

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, all of which were recognised from ANEB R EB M KR E LB FI5HEEAN <
WS (FTBERSNERFANBER) DMAT :

contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 is as follows:

2025 2024
—E-RE ZTZNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH& T

Revenue from contracts with customers K B & F & #1894 2
Sales of watches i = e gk 1,162 1,771
Sales of compound fertilisers HEEAE 58,099 30,960
Service income B 75 e A 9 10
Commission income He A 17,954 39,113
Total revenue Fol & 77,224 71,854

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised
below:

Sales of watches and compound fertilisers

The performance obligation is recognised at a point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the customer, being at the
point the customer purchases the goods at the store, on delivery of the
merchandise for wholesale segment, or on delivery of the compound
fertilisers for manufacture and sales segment. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately, within 90 days, at the point the
customer purchases the products under wholesale and manufacture
segments, or is in advance from the customers before the compound
fertilisers are provided, respectively.

Service income

The Group provides services on repairing watches to customers. The
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the service
is completed and advance payments are normally required before
rendering the services. The Group’s enforceable right to the payment
is subject to the completion of the whole services. The services are for
periods less than one year.
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HE-_Z-_RAFNA=THLFE

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Commission income

The performance obligation is completed at a point in time when the
services on arranging trading of fertilisers and other related products
are completed. Payment is generally in advance from the customers
before the agency services are provided.

All the contracts in relation to trading of fertilisers are for original
expected duration of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations of the
Group that were unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as at the end of
the reporting periods in relation to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the wholesale of watches and
provision of watch repairing services to its customers in Hong Kong,
acting as agent in the trading of fertilisers, fertiliser raw materials and
other related products and has also engaged in manufacture and sales
of compound fertilisers in Mainland China.

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, who are the
chief operating decision makers (the “CODM”) of the Group, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance, are
focused on three main operations (2024: three) of the Group identified
in accordance with the business nature and the size of the operations.

Specifically, the reportable and operating segments of the Group under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

o Wholesale business of watches (“Wholesale”) — wholesale of
multi brands of watches and provision of watch repairing services
to its customers in Hong Kong

° Trading of fertilisers and other related products (“Trading”) —
provision of agency services in relation to trading of fertilisers and
other related products in Hong Kong and Mainland China

° Manufacture and sales of compound fertilisers (“Manufacture”)
— manufacture and sales of compound fertilisers in Mainland
China

There are no significant sales or other transactions among the
segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRE M mRME

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-_AFWHA=+HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating and reportable segment for the two years:

For the year ended 30 April 2025

Revenue I 25
External sales of goods SNERHE B Y
External service income SN ER AR 75 I A

External commission income  4h &84 4 Uz A

Segment (loss)/profit 2B (E518),/ 3% F
Finance costs Bl & Bk AN
Unallocated group expenses 7 2 fic & B 5 52

Profit before tax B % B &

7 28 E # )
TEME R EE

AEERMEFERNRLLERATZHD
MEDZWEREEDTWT :

BE-_Z-_HAFENA=1THLEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 30 April 2024

7 EE R @

o M'B l‘l& = )54 % 2 (')

BZ_Z-_NFNA=1tHIEE

Wholesale Trading Manufacture Total

#E 2% =0 BYE #act

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T FAT FA&T FAT

Revenue W =

External sales of goods INERSHE B 1,771 — 30,960 32,731
External service income S EB AR 75 A 10 — — 10
External commission income M &0 & IRA - 39,113 — 39,113
1,781 39,113 30,960 71,854

Segment (loss)/profit 286 (E18), &= F (5,361) 16,261 1,471 12,371
Finance costs Bl & Y AR (171)
Unallocated group expenses &% Bc & B &2 (7,656)
Profit before tax B 5% A & 4,544

The revenue from external parties reported to the executive directors MMITEEER 2 HNIBETHH W= IZH

is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The material accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s material accounting policies described in note
3. Segment result represents the (loss)/profit (incurred by)/earned
by each segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

No segment assets and liabilities information is provided as no such
information is regularly provided to the CODM of the Group for the
purpose of making decision for resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

During the year, the Group’s operation is mainly located in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue by geographical location
of customers, based on location of delivery of the watches, compound
fertilisers or services, is detailed below:

iR A B R R T R
BE-_TZ-_AFWNA=1THIFE

7 EE R @
ih 1B & B

RAFE AKREZEBTEMNDE
AN EE - AEEREFPHIEGE (&
KBRSk - BARIEHRBH T E) & D
ZWEFHBWT

2025 2024

—E_RE —ZE N4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Mainland China EoBENNp: 76,053 70,073
Hong Kong BB 1,171 1,781
Total HEt 77,224 71,854

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. There is no single external customer who
contributed more than 10% of total revenue of the Group for both
years.

The information of the Group’s non-current assets excluding deferred
tax assets by geographical location is detailed below:

AEBEZWZETBRAFEAAND RES
Z2EEP -MEFEATEE —IILREP
BERBAAERAWZEAI10% o

AEBERWEMNES D ZIFRBDEE
(TEREEHBEE) ERFBWOT

2025 2024

—E_RE —ZE_O4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Mainland China FR B AT 1,569 1,531

E-EEREERABRAQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RGBS R M A
For the year ended 30 April 2025 #HE-Z_-_AFWA=+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. D EX @
Other disclosures Hih i &
For the year ended 30 April 2025 BE-_Z-_AFWNA=1THLEE

Additions to non-current assets RNEFERBDEE

Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREBEZ
plant and equipment L&
Depreciation of property, Y BEIREITE

plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ B E T &

Freight costs BEBENAN
Government grants BT 178 B
Allowance for write-down of ERRMRTE BB

inventories recognised
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EHERm
Other disclosures (Continued) H b % & (a0)
For the year ended 30 April 2024 BE-_Z_MNFWNA=1+HLEE
Wholesale Trading Manufacture Total
il 25 S5 #Et

HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET

Additions to non-current assets RNEFERBDEE — 548 5,980 6,528
Depreciation of property, M BEMERETE

plant and equipment — 52 — 52
Depreciation of TREEERE

right-of-use assets — — 581 581
Freight costs BB — 13,632 14 13,646
Government grants X 4 BY - 66 - 66
Allowance for write-down of ERERMETE 2 #E

inventories recognised 392 = = 392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M AT

For the year ended 30 April 2025

HE-_Z-_RAFNA=THLFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HittWam R EEFHE
2025 2024
—E_RE —E_O4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 i 2= 558 55 1,939
Interest income B BA 99 281
Sundry income HIE WA 3 11
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE BEREKEBEZ
plant and equipment I 25 285 —
Gain from lease modifications HEEET 2 W= - 73
Government grants (note (a)) B # B (B 2t (2)) 38 66
Commission income from sale of HEBEHhNES
wine (note (b)) WA (K77 b)) 1,607 —
Total #Et 2,087 2,370
Notes: B & -
(@  The government grants represent financial subsidies for compensating @ BNHEDEHNERENIHETHE

106 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

expenses already incurred or giving immediate financial support to the
Group. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies in relation
to the grants and the grants were determined at the sole discretion of
relevant government authorities in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Government grant income recognised in the current year includes an
amount of HK$38,000 (2024: HK$ 66,000) in respect of labour support
such as employment stability and training and other subsidies provided by
the relevant PRC government.

The Group determines that the nature of its promise is to arrange for the
wine to be provided by the suppliers to the customers and hence, for
financial reporting purposes under HKFRS 15, the Group is an agent not
a principal. Commission income is recognised at a point in time when the
services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRG B SRR MR
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

2 -BERZEERAERA A

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEKNXK
2024
—E -
HK$’000
T T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 171
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. PBRH AIEF
2024
—F -
HK$’000
T T
Profit before tax has been arrived at BR A AR M TR HBR A T &8 %
after charging: S
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% WE REE
equipment e 52
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENES 581
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 Bl i B 900
Freight costs DN 13,646
Short-term lease expenses EHHEERAX 265
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) EEHM(ME12) 6,697
Other staff HiET
— Salaries and wages —¥ekIA& 10,968
— Other employee benefits — HithE BRF 45
— Retirement benefit scheme — H b B T A RIKEFIF S
contribution of other staff R 982
Total staff costs BT AEE 18,692
Allowance for write-down of inventories 1A 88 & BX 28 7 52 HO fURL1E &
recognised in cost of sales B 392
Carrying amount of inventories sold BRRAEEXANEERFE
recognised in cost of sales R A 30,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R A WIS R I i
For the year ended 30 April 2025

HE-_Z-_RAFNA=THLFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. RSB X
2025 2024
—E-RE —ZE_PO4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current taxation B ER #7185

Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENFH = =
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FREMCEMERH ([REMEBH]) 1,512 3,440
Sub-total /NEt 1,512 3,440

Over provision for prior years BEFEREEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB SR — =
PRC EIT Bl RS R (203) (166)
Sub-total NET (203) (166)
Deferred taxation (note 17) EERLIE (M aE17) 215 (11)
Total st 1,524 3,263

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong, the first

HK$2 million taxable profits of the qualifying corporation of the Group
is taxed at 8.25%, and taxable profits above HK$2 million are taxed
at 16.5%. The directors considered the amount involved from the
application of the two-tiered profits tax rates as insignificant to the
consolidated financial statements. Other subsidiaries in Hong Kong are
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries was

25% for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

iRG B RS R R M A
BHE-_Z-_RAFNA=THLFE

10. FR BB B X )

AEREZRAXHARGAEEEMERE
Ui & 3% AT 8L RR B AR M SRR AT

2025 2024
—E-RF —ZT_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Profit before tax W B4 Al 4 A 6,940 4,544
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of ~ IZ A AT £ 16.5% 1 H 2 Fi 18
16.5% (2024: 16.5%) (note) (ZE=F : 16.5%) (A1 :%) 1,145 750
Tax effects of: NTEBZBBTE
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ A 31 §¢ 5 2 232 216
Income not taxable for tax purposes LTSN (47) ="
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIEEE 239 1,561
Utilisation of tax loss previously not AL ARER Z
recognised HIBEE (113) —
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) R 5t B A T R 2 B H Rk
difference previously not recognised TR =R (30) (29)
Over provision for prior years BEFERREEE (203) (166)
Different tax rate of subsidiaries Bl /N A N R T 301 931
Income tax expense Fr8 R 1,524 3,263

* Amount was less than HK$1,000

Note: The domestic tax rate, which is the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate, in the
jurisdiction where the operations of the Group are substantially based is
used.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 10% is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of taxable temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB61,558,000
(2024: RMB55,689,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

E-EEREERABRAQA

* ST RE1,0008 7T

Mt AR EEAEBBRLO XKL E
FERERRZBE  EENEH

B o

BREFECEMSHE BT N\F
—A— B gt BB A A FTERE
sa A BT B R H9 B B A BIR10% T8 FF
I 4 3k B B B B 2 B R 5 A FE (kB E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RGBS R M A
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=+HIFE

11. DIVIDENDS 1. R E
No dividend was paid, declared or proposed for ordinary shareholders HE_ZT-_AFER-_ZT-_MFNA=+
of the Company during the years ended 30 April 2025 and 2024, nor HIEFE  WERARD R LERRKRIR
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting year. N EBRIEZENEMKRE  B®E

FRNMERZRNEMBKS -

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S 12.BEERFETHAEMHE

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed WBEER ETH A R(EERRBKALD
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies WEZFANEEREBTHRAENS
Ordinance, is as follows: R
Employer’s contribution to
Name of director ~EZ# % Fees Salaries Discretionary bonus pension scheme Total
He ¢ HfEa EERASHEER @zt
HK$'000 TAR 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
ik a1 }:3 —ZomE k- a1 }:3 —ZomE —EomE
(Restated) (Restated)
(=51 (& =E51)
Executive Directors:  #H1TEE -
Meng Guangyin RER
(note () (Hiita) 9 6,009
Liu Guoging (note (b)) 21L& (Hi7 (b)) 13 263
Liu Jiagjang 2|3 20 191
LiDong Po TRH - 54
Wong Wai Chu BN
(note (6)) (Hi#e) - -
Independent BUFHTEE:
Non-Executive
Directors:
Tian Zhiyuan BEE - %
leeChunKeung  Z8%(Hi()
(note (c) - %
Wang Luping FRE - 48
Gao Jizhong fnote (d) =% B (Hf 7 () - 10
Total st 42 6,697
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their EXFTRBTES M NESAEARA
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the AIRAEEEBRETERB M -
Company and the Group.
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above EXFTRBIRTES M HES
were for their services as directors of the Company. BERARREZTZHME -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief HEZZ-_AFKZFT-_NFMNA=+F
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the BIEFE BEESHTRERBEME
years ended 30 April 2025 and 2024. ML REXRBTREEAMNE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12.EBRFETHRAE

EMOLUMENTS (continued) @H & (%)

Notes: Hiat -

(@  Mr. Meng Guangyin was the chairman of the board and the chief @ HZESRLEER-ZZT-_NFEA+BEZ
executive officer of the Company before 10 April 2024. He has resigned MAARREESEFERITHAR I
as executive director of the Company, and as chairman and chief ZE_MFMA+HRBEEARA
executive officer, with effect from 10 April 2024. WMITEE  EERITRERR -

()  Mr. Liu Guoging has been appointed as the chairman of the board and ) BIEELEB-T-_NFHNA+HE
the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 10 April 2024. BEZEAARAEETEEERTHR

wE -

(©)  Mr. Lee Chun Keung has resigned as an independent non-executive © ZFTHARLEEBZZ_=F+—AT+RX
director of the Company with effect from 16 November 2023. AEFEARARR B IIFRNITERR

(d  Mr. Gao Jizhong has been appointed as an independent non-executive d =SEFETEBZT-_MF=-A+HAH
director of the Company with effect from 15 February 2024. REZTEARARBIBIUIENTES -

(e Ms. Wong Wai Chu has been appointed as an executive director of the (e) BEERALTE T _WE+—HA=+
Company with effect from 29 November 2024. NBREZFRARNATHNITES -

= = 3 =
13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. hEBReEHFMES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included FA-AEENTEESTHEE RS

one director (2024: two), details of whose remuneration are set out in B2 CE-_NF:-MB)EE BH

note 12 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining HEM 2z BE R L MaE12 - A&k

four (2024: three) highest paid employees who are neither a director B(ZE_NF: ZRZ)BEFEENHIEAR

nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: ARAIEFBTHRAENZSHFHEERA
FEZHEMFBOT
2025 2024
—E-HF —ZoEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FA&T
Salaries, other allowances and benefits ~ #7& ~ E b £ 8 R EWF &
in kind 1,848 4,872
Retirement benefit costs R NAE FI KA
— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ~ — 38 &l A fE & 5t 2l 68 54
Total #EEt 1,916 4,926
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continves)y 13. B2 H & H M E S w0

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of W IEAR AR EEMEFH A T 7 & E 2 WY

the Company whose remuneration fell within the following band: =P HES A :
Number
AE
2025 2024
—EBC-HF —ZT_EF
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 = — 1,000,000/% 7T 4 2
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T — 4,000,000 7T — 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company or the chief executive of the Group or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2024: Nil).

AEEFALERARREETRALHE
TRTHRABRAEZESHMA LN
B - 1 7% 0 B2 AN 5% 1 5 o0 B AN R [ B
MBSREABEBAEE(ZT N

') o
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable RARHEEABESRERNREERF
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: TR A T SR AT E
2025 2024
—E-HF —TEMEF
Profit for the year attributable to owners 7% A &1 #E B A J& {h 4 )i A
of the Company (HK$’000) (F%57T) 5,416 1,281

Weighted average number of ordinary BETEER
shares in issue I FEHE

800,000,000 800,000,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share IR B R R #5E B A
(HK cent per share) €=3:9::201p)

0.68 0.16

No adjustments have been made in calculating diluted earnings per
share for both years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue
for both years.

HRMEFEALETANERTEES
BE B EMBEFENSRETRN
iSRS (g

112 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2024/25



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BENRRKRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Office Production
improvements fixtures equipment equipment  Motor vehicle Total
HEMERE HKAEREE BAZERE EERE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTET THET AT AT THT
COST BA

At 1 May 2023 R-E-_=FRA—H 858 464 599 - 545 2,466
Additions NE = = - - 548 548
Exchange realignment  SMNE £ - - - - (10) (10)
At 30 April 2024 R-E-mEMA=+A 858 464 599 - 1,083 3,004
Additions NE - - - 477 - 477
Disposals HE - - - - (505) (508)
Exchange realignment 5[ 33 % - - - - @) @)
At 30 April 2025 R-B-HEMB=+A 858 464 599 477 576 2,074

DEPRECIATIONAND #fERRE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 May 2023 R-_E-_=FRA—H 858 464 599 - 446 2,367
Provided for the year ~ F W#EE (#1i#(a)

(note (a)) — — — — 52 52
Exchange realignment  SMNE 5 & - - - - () 9]
At 30 April 2024 RZZE-_WFMA=+H 858 464 599 = 493 2,414
Provided for the year & W {E (#1i# (@)

(note (a)) — — — 100 39 139
Disposals & - - - - (505) (505)
Exchange realignment M 38 % - = = (1) (1) @
At 30 April 2025 R-ZE-HFEMAB=1+H 858 464 599 99 26 2,046
CARRYING VALUES  fREE
At 30 April 2025 R-Z-_HFEMA=T1H - - - 378 550 928
At 30 April 2024 R-BE-mEWA=+A - - - - 590 590

Note: Hazt -

(@  The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, taking @  EdE- BERXEER DR R
into account their residual values, on a straight-line basis as follows: HEBEE REGEZTENT :
Leasehold improvements Lease terms of 2 to 5 years HEMERE M A2ESE
Furniture and fixtures 5 years REREKE 5%

Office equipment 3 years WAER 34
Production equipment 5 years EERE 5%
Motor vehicles 5 years RE 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FAEEE

Land and
Machinery factory Office Total
B T REE WAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHE T FHET
COST B AR
At 1 May 2023 R—_ZTE-_=FRA—H — = 360 360
Additions ANE 5,980 = — 5,980
Lease modification (note (b)) HEEET (Kt b) (4,458) — — (4,458)
Write-off (note (a)) s (Bt &t (2)) — — (360) (360)
At 30 April 2024 R-ZE-_WFMA=+H 1,522 — — 1,522
Reclassification EH N (888) 888 — —
Write-off ¥ 85 (634) - — (634)
Exchange realignment HINEE B - ®) — ®)
At 30 April 2025 R=-EBE-_HFFEFMA=+AH - 882 - 882
DEPRECIATION AND WERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 May 2023 R-E-_=#HAF—H — = 360 360
Depreciation e 581 — — 581
Write-off (note (a)) s (Hf &t (2)) — — (360) (360)
At 30 April 2024 R-ZTE_WMFEMNA=+H 581 — — 581
Depreciation e 53 243 — 296
Write-off P £ (634) — — (634)
Exchange realignment HINEE ) EE — © — @)
At 30 April 2025 R-ZE-_HFWA=+H - 241 - 241
CARRYING VALUES B H (B
At 30 April 2025 R-ZE-_HFWMA=T1H - 641 - 641
At 30 April 2024 RZTE_MFMNA=+H 941 — — 941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

RN EE

HE_ZT-_RFENA=+tHLFE

16. FRAEEE@w

Biat -
Right-of-use assets are written off upon termination of the leases at the @ FRAREERHENARAKRILIEER
end of the lease term. gy o

2025 2024
—E-HF —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHBT
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHEEEENAX 389 265
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabiites (EEREBEZ AL HLH 937 643
Interest paid on lease liabilities BENEEAERE 9 171
Total cash outflow for leases for the year FAHRER SR HARE 1,335 1,079

For the year ended 30 April 2025, the Group leases various machinery,
land and factory and office premises for its operations. Lease contracts
to which the Group’s right-of-use assets relate are entered into for
fixed terms of 3 years (2024: 2-3.66 years) and without extension and
termination options.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the leases.

As at 30 April 2025, the Group has no commitment in respect of short-
term leases. The short-term lease expense incurred during the year
amounted to HK$389,000 (2024: HK$265,000) for lease of warehouse
and office premises.

As at 30 April 2025, the Group does not provide residual value guarantees
in relation to leases arrangements. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor.

As at 30 April 2025, the Group has no leases that are committed but not
yet commenced.

Lease modification

In April 2024, the Group has entered into supplementary agreements
with the lessor, a related party, to purchase the machinery which was
the subject of a lease of land and factory including machinery on 1
July 2024 with consideration amounting to RMB442,000 (equivalent to
HK$477,000), and lease the land and factory with a one-off payment
of RMB727,000 (equivalent to HK$782,000) for three years from 1 July
2024.

—EEREZEERBERAQ

5

REBEE_Z_RAFNA=THLFE"
AEBEMEEE TR - it RS
REAREE -BAKEEREEESR
B ES NI LME TR RIF

(ZZ_NF:25E366F) ERHAR
Zﬁlﬂ: R IH o
FRHEEERESZNAHRIER
wE-

R-ZE-_HEWMA=+H  AEHIL
EESHEEABE 2 RE - RAFE -
HEAEMMAZCELANYHAER
389,000/ 7t ( = & = IO £ : 265,000
/%E)

R-ZE-AFWEA=+H AEHEI K
RUBBELHARZRBEEER -
BRHEARENHEEETNERE
zfh - A8 B 10 S b 0 A ] EL A 225 o
R-Z_RAFWEA=+H AEHILE
EAEARRFAROEE -

HEER]

REZTE-_WMEFMOA - AEEHETEAA
(—&@H AL lxhE RZF =
MFE+A— B RREAR442,0007T
(A8 & 1 477,000 70) iE B ek (B = #
WMEOEETHMEHENZRN) WA
R #727,0007T (48 & 7 782,000/ 7T) A
—RENZBEELHERE B2
ME+tA—BRAH=F-

—mE/—HEEH 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

17. DEFERRED TAXATION 17. IEEEB B
2025 2024
—E-RE — T _UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Deferred tax assets BEEMIBE E 182 237
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAG (160) —
22 237
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised TRHEIRAEFERBEFERERZE
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: ERELEHBEE (AR REZE) :
Right-of- Lease
Provision use assets liabilities Total
BiE FHEEE HEAE Mt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET TR TR

At 1 May 2023 R-_E-_=FFAA—H 237 — — 237
Recognised upon initial R EREE R B ER

recognition of assets and R

liabilities — (1,5086) 1,506 —
Credited/(charged) to profit RIBET A (F1R)

or loss 11 1,269 (1,269) 11
Exchange realignment SNIE B (11) 2 @) (1
At 30 April 2024 R-ZZE-_WMFMA=1+H 237 (235) 235 237
Credited/(charged) to profit RiESEEA S (FBR)

or loss (55) 75 (235) (215)
At 30 April 2025 RZE-_RAFMNA=1+H 182 (160) — 22
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$163,656,000 (2024: HK$162,888,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HKS$ nil
(2024: HK$2,000) that will expire in next five years ending in 2029 (2024:
2028). as the subsidiary of IR E —RREHEAR A F has been
deregistered during this year. No unrecognised tax losses for the other
PRC subsidiaries for both years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences, mainly related to impairment and depreciation
of right-of use assets and property, plant and equipment, and
accrued expenses for audit and other service fees, of approximately
HK$1,051,000 (2024: HK$1,226,000), of which deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$956,000 (2024: HK$950,000)
of these temporary differences. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to the remaining deductible temporary differences
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

17.

R4 B 7S B R M A

BE-_TZ-_RAFMNA=1+HILFE
iIE 7 5 18 )

RBEHR AEE T ARENR RS
Fl 2 R B) A3 B 18 5 18 4Y /5 163,656,000 75
7T (== — /£ : 162,888,000/ Jr ) ° Z&
P ETE R B &% R - WISk B 3
EERRECHBEEE - BREBEE=FT
ZNF(ZZEZOF:ZZENAF)IER
RAEFEFEINHNBEEEEL(ZS =
P4 : 2,000/ 7o) B 5T A K R 5 1B &
B-AFEEN LWEE—RENEAR
RAIZKMBRARIEEHERL R EF
B BB E AR EREREIE
E1E o

RS HA R - AR & B A H 4 T 005 E B
MEB(TZHRFRAEEE - WE- B
EBREHEZRERITENLRENEZ
s kEAMREESFB) 4 A1,051,000
BT (=T Z W& 1,226,000/ 76) © &
FEBEERMEZEEB0B T(ZE
Z 9 4F : 950,000 T ) FE 3R A IR IE 7 18
BE - B Al AR B FE R B m A DA
S8 T 0P B M A RE B AR RE R R A
AT R R = SR AR B /Y B IE B 1A
BE o

18. INVENTORIES 18. #&
2025 2024
—E-HF —E -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT
Merchandise for resale HE R 19 196
Raw materials J= 2,978 2,569
Finished goods 215K o 3,447 1,473
Low value consumables KBS 854 285
Total st 7,298 4,523

As at 30 April 2025, the gross carrying amount of inventories was
HK$14,612,000 (2024: HK$13,789,000) and allowance for write-down
of inventories was HK$7,314,000 (2024: HK$9,266,000).

—EERZERBRQA

W_?_ﬂimﬂ +H GFEZERE

4 {8 514,612,000/ (= T = M F -
13789000/%75) iR T 'R E R
7,314,0007 T ( — T — Y 4F : 9,266,000
BIT) °

T-_mE/—_"EFEH 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B TS HR AR MY A

For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 10. ERE S FHE HMEW
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS MEREMNRE

2025 2024

—E_RE —ET 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#& T &L

Trade receivables fE W E 55k IE 363 545
Other receivables H e W sk IE

— Rental and utilities deposits SN E 69 120

— Others — Hith 82 82

Prepayments (note) TR R IE (K7 22) 72,225 100,215

Total @t 72,739 100,962

Note: Prepayments as at 30 April 2025 mainly include prepayments to suppliers
for procurement of fertilisers raw materials, fertilisers and other related
products in China amounting to approximately HK$69,633,000 (2024:
HK$100,043,000). The amounts prepaid to suppliers will be derecognised
when the products are directly delivered to customers by the suppliers.
82% (2024: 87%) of the amounts prepaid to suppliers were paid to the
related parties of the Group as disclosed in note 31(i). The management
considered that the credit risk in respect of the prepayments as at 30 April
2025 is low based on the records of product deliveries from the suppliers
to customers and the deliveries made subsequent to 30 April 2025.

As at 30 April 2025, the trade receivables mainly comprised receivables
from trading customers in wholesale segment. There was no specific
credit terms granted to wholesale customers. The Group’s credit terms
granted to wholesale customers generally ranged from 60 to 90 days

from the invoice date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR A B R R M
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE—Z-_RAFMNA=+H Jtﬁgr

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 19. BIWE 5 08 - HbEW
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) NERE 'ﬁ' TR IE ()
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables presented based REZEMEIN 2 EIKRE HHRIBERER S
on the invoice dates. METIT o
2025 2024
—E-ARE —EmE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT F& T
Within 30 days 30H A 192 316
31 to 60 days 31260H 17 —
61 to 90 days 612 90H 8 109
Over 90 days B0 H 146 120
Total #Et 363 545
As at 30 April 2025, trade receivables that were past due but not RZEZRAFEOA=+H 2@ ER
impaired amounted to HK$146,000 (2024: HK$120,000). Trade SHE ) FE U E 5 28 A 146,000 7T (=
receivables in connection with these customers are with good credit T P4 120,000 L) c HHZE X )5
quality and no past due history. In addition, the management of EHNERESREEERITFEES
the Group considers these assets are short-term in nature and the e Hlﬁiﬁﬁﬁ ik N AEEE
probability of default is negligible. In this regard, the directors consider E@ REZSEEBRNEHEE EXN
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The management of BE T H 17“»5( RUME EFTRE
the Group considered the effect of impairment on trade receivables is ZIK L] E’J FEERRBEBREREK - A&H
immaterial, no provision was made in this regard. EEERRENR é ZFIBR R E R E L

REKR  HRERUIEHREME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from
0.001% to 0.250% (2024: ranging from 0.001% to 0.875%) per annum.

BERBEEEY

R ITAE IR N F0.001% E0.250% (=&
—MF N F0.001%E0.875%) Z B 1T
M EF KRB -

2025 2024

—E-HF —E-OEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT F&T

Bank balances IRITHBR 127,014 65,814
Cash B& 116 23
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 127,130 65,837

As at 30 April 2025, the bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB113,128,000 (2024: RMB56,511,000).

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies in the PRC. Under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

R-ZE_AFNA=+H KEBEIA
REFENETEIURBENESS
BYWH A AR BE113,128,000T (= F =
M4« AR#56,511,0007T) °

ARBRFBETIABEALBAINE - R
1% B RO SMNEE B I R ) I AR - B I
MEEERE AEEEEZBERE
RENEZEBHRTIEARE LHBK
SN o

1. EZREMENFE

2025 2024

—E_RE —ZE_O4F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FAT

Trade payables (note) B E S RIE (K7 5E) 70,257 15,487
Other accruals and payables H it EET & A & E IR 33,895 36,357
Contract liabilities EHEE 37,960 58,696
Total #Et 142,112 110,540
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Lt

For the year ended 30 April 2025 #HZE—-T — EEEEH +E|Jt5¥r

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Contract liabilities represented short-term advances received
from customers to arrange for the delivery of compound fertilisers
to the customers, which amounted to HK$37,960,000 (2024:
HK$58,696,000) as at 30 April 2025 and HK$58,696,000 at the
beginning of the reporting period (2024: HK$69,651,000). The
amount of advances is negotiated on a case-by-case basis with the
customers. During the year ended 30 April 2025, there was a decrease
in contract liabilities of HK$51,937,000 (2024: HK$61,949,000) which
was included in the contract liabilities as at 30 April 2024 as a result of
completion of the performance of the performance obligations upon
delivery of the compound fertilisers to the customers. For the contract
liabilities as at 30 April 2025 and 2024, the entire balances will be
derecognised within twelve months from 30 April 2025 and 2024 when
the products are delivered to the customers.

Other payables as at 30 April 2025 include short-term advances
received from customers to arrange for the procurement of fertiliser
raw materials, fertilisers and other related products amounting to
approximately HK$28,624,000 (2024: HK$31,078,000). The amounts
advanced from the customers will be derecognised when the products
are directly delivered to the customers by the suppliers.

Note: The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice dates.

1. B RHEMENRER@®

EHBEEREPWERSIEESER
NZHEmESsBENRE R -H
F A=+ H A37,960,000% t( ==
— Y 4F : 58,696,000 L) KR | E
HB %] 458,696,000/ JT( = & — Y 4F :
69,651,000 T ) » T8 1 & 5 ¥% @ 5l 5
NEREHE BE_ZT_HAFMWA
“t+HLEFE BREXKETRRR
RNTEEEMENRER R
FUA=Z+TAHFAGHNEGBENANA
& B 451,987,000/ ;L (= & = Y 4F ¢
61,949,000/ 7T) c R Z T A F K =
T_MFENMA=tHMNANEBEME
FEMRNTERE 2EBEER=
T_RAFRZZZNFMA =T HER
TR AR IEER-

M-ZE-_RAFENA=1+HZEMENK
BEERELWES EERER - BBk
&E@mﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ

X IH 4928,624,00078 ;o ( = & — O 4F :
mwmm%m) EEMHHERER
R FEPER  BRIEEARPRR -

Kt BRBEZAHEINZENE S RARR
DHEINLAT -

2025 2024

—E_RHE —ZE U4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within 30 days 30H & 26,573 1,618
31 to 60 days 312 60H 29,490 28
Over 60 days HBime0H 14,194 13,941
Total st 70,257 15,487

E-EEREERABRAQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RGBS R M A
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=+HIFE

22. LEASE LIABILITIES 2. HE&RE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the TRINTHRBEARNAEBREEE(E
Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period: ZH A OB BB

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease lease
payments payments
IR HEHE
HERK NRIRE
2024 2024
—T_mF —E o
HK$’'000 HK$’000

TAET THET

Within 1 year —F R
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ — LA E{B T BB F
After 2 years but within 5 years FEI FET BB RS

Total minimum lease payments & 1 8 & - X 42 58

Total future interest expenses 7k & Kl B 5 7 48 48

Present value of lease liabilities & & &R &

Amount due within 1 year R—FRIBPzEE

Amount due after 1 year RN—FRIPzEH
The average effective borrowing rate of the Group for the year ended BE_T-_NMFEA=THLFE &
30 April 2024 was 5.39%. SENTFHERERF X R539% °

23. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 23. ENRAERATNRE

COMPANY
Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, non-interest FEN AR AR RIAE BER - Tt
bearing and repayable on demand. BRBREREER-
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For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE—Z-_RAFMNA=+H Jtﬁgr

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, fg Z
Number of
shares Share capital
BHEE ;S
‘000 HK$’000
T i FH& T
Ordinary shares of par value ERAEECOIE LY
HK$0.01 each T AR
Authorised EE
At 1 May 2023, 30 April 2024 and RZZE_=FHAA—H8"
30 April 2025 —EWOFMNA=FTHRK
—E-_RAFWMA=+H 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRABZ
At 1 May 2023, 30 April 2024 and RZTE_=FHH—AQ8"
30 April 2025 —EMFMNA=FTHK
—E-RAFWMA=+H 800,000 8,000
25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 25. 3B K& R =t &
Defined contribution plans TE Bt FRET &l
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all AREBRBEEMECERERR IR
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are MAEEFTE - -FTECEERERAE
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of FlzEeHE BAEEZEENIHE
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs or up to a B -ASETAHRBABE THM25%%
maximum of HK$1,500 per month to the Scheme, which contribution is & %1,5008 T A ET 8 5% - M fE B I e
matched by employees. AR B R o
The qualifying employees in the PRC of the Group are members of AEERFBR2AEREEHZNT A
a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC FRBNFEERIEZBERERNETE -
government. The Group is required to contribute a specified percentage AEBBERE THBAANZE TG
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. MERARSETEHIE RBEFNEBRAAER
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit He AW ASBEZRARSEE AR
scheme is to make the specified contributions. EBEREE MM -
The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$1,145,000 (2024: NE = '43 MRZBRABEAA 45,000
HK$1,024,000) represent contributions payable to these schemes by /% JL(=ZF — 94 : 1,024,000/ 70 )
the Group in respect of the current accounting period. No forfeited BRAEEREASE qu B P FE (M) 5% 51 & EZ
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future ﬁ Z R -RZE_AFOMA=FTHK
years at 30 April 2025 and 30 April 2024. —ZE=-m ¢ l7_f| A=+8 &Rz #

KA REIRR RRFE 2 BAHRK -
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For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 26.

Equity-settled share option schemes

Pursuant to the board resolution passed on 4 January 2018, the Board
resolved to grant 80,000,000 share options (the “Share Option Plan”)
in total to employees and business associates of the Company (the
“Grantees”), subject to acceptance of the Grantees, to subscribe
for a total of 80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company. The Share Option Plan was approved by the
Shareholders by way of poll at the Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 25 January 2018.

The share options granted under the Share Option Plan were not
accepted by the Grantees. As a result, no share options were
recognised as granted and outstanding as at 30 April 2025 and 2024.

27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27.

Capital and other expenditure contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of:

IR AR 3 &R

UESEEE 2 BRESE

$M‘§faé:%—/\$—ﬂ = e g
EEeRER EFCFIRAHERY
80OOOOOOT\E%HXTE(fEﬁHﬁE‘fEIJ)
ARalzEEREBEHTERAL -
FARBAENE  ATRERQFRKRAF
4 380,000,000 8% & % M E0.018 7T 2
TR -WRERR_ZFT—NF—A=-+a

BIOZRERFIAE EURERRS
TCHE BB AR A AT &) -

BIE AL KB AR R BB
BRE-EH R-E-HBER-T-
mEMA=+E TEBEREERRAE
158 T R AT 4 o

BREE

FAMBHRALTIZREFT LB H

REENERAREMET S
2025 2024
—E_RE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T

Purchases of: BE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB &R

- 541
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For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return
to owners of the Company through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
amount due to ultimate holding company and lease liabilities, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from time to
time. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital and bank
loan. Based on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the issue of new
shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio at 30 April 2025 and 2024 was as
follows:

28. EXEEE

AEENEAERE ERRAEE
ERMEBELYE RABEBELEY
REREBAARATEE ASKSEA
D R EE Y BERBEEFREAS
28

$EIZ>§$ *%&%E1 CHEB e
& 5 Bx 48 43 IR FEAERBEAEMEN
Eﬂﬁfﬁi&fﬁﬁﬁf?‘i%&ﬁ AHEE AR
s MARREBEARLEEZERE
EEITRARERE)

nJ}

ARBEETHBHERGEE - A7
ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁLﬁ¢%fﬁ$&$&
HERARRITEFEBEZEAR - KNEH
%WE$A5§$ZLM BIBEITH
- HEBEBRBROREEBRFEER
BERGEE -

R-E_AFR_ZT_MFEFMA=+H
I ER R B ERAN L RN

2025 2024

—E_RE —TYF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT F&T

Total debts BB 4B 46,074 47,036
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B eRREEEY 127,130 65,837
Net cash REFH (81,056) (18,801)
Total capital L 20,424 15,371
Net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio B F R AR AL X N/A 7 E A N/A 7~ & A

—EERZERBRQA
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For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. €RT A
292, £l T A 285l

29a. Categories of financial instruments

2025 2024
—E_RE —E M4
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#& T FET

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEHK AR 2 EMEE 127,644 66,584
2025 2024
—E-REF —E_POF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FExT FE T

Financial liabilities SREE
At amortised cost 1R 5H P AN 71 BR 150,226 97,939
Lease liabilities HERE - 941

29b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables,
rental and utilities deposits, other receivable, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, and other accruals and payables,
amount due to ultimate holding company and lease liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

29b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions in USD, which is the
currency other than the functional currencies of the respective
group entities. The functional currency of these group entities
is Renminbi and certain of their trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables are denominated in USD. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movements of the foreign currency rates. The directors conduct
periodical review of foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the respective
reporting dates are as follows:

2. €@t T B
20b. I EREEEER

B (@)

B b
AEBUXRTETETRS X
REEBERDEEEAINE
B-ZEEEEBNNEEERA
R EETE S MEMERFOR
REZREMENRBNLETS
B ARBEEBENERINEER
EPEEHEINERR EFETEHMR
MONERRE TERERFTERERE
B ARIMNERE ©

AEBUIINEFENEEEER
BEEREHRSHHNEREENT

2025 2024
—E-RE —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade and other receivables AETHENE S KM EK
denominated in USD IE 158 =
Trade and other payables LAZETTEEMNE S & H e
denominated in USD I8 1,497 139
Sensitivity analysis BMBREDN

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2024: 5%) increase in the functional currency of the relevant
group entities, Renminbi, relative to respective foreign currency,
USD. The sensitivity analysis includes only foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2024: 5%) change
in the foreign currency rates. If the functional currency of the
relevant group entities strengthen/weaken 5% against respective
foreign currency, the Group’s post tax profit for the year would
be increased/decreased by approximately HK$50,000 (2024:
HK$5,000).

—EEREZEERBERAQ

LA T SRk E 9 i 5F il AN & B AR
BEEETEMNIY aia%%/\}%’mﬁ
HEEHIINEZT EASR(ZF =
PU4F : 5%) M BUKE - BMERE DT
EBRFEUIIEFENERIER I
BN FE K5% (= F — PU4F : 5%)
MEBNREHRABRELBREA-
WS EEENY L% XA
BN FHE B E5% A AEE
KNEE /R %S R #1865 >
#750,0007% 7T (=& = I 4 : 5,000
EIT) e
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For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

128 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

29b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position best represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated a
team responsible for the determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

The Group has concentration to credit risk as its current assets
as at 30 April 2025 includes prepayments of approximately
HK$57,354,000 (2024: HK$87,188,000) paid to two (2024: two)
major suppliers of the Group as disclosed in note 19 and note
31(i). These prepayments are not subject to ECL assessment as
they are not financial assets or contract assets. The management
considered the credit risk in respect of the prepayments as at 30
April 2025 is low.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, based
on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without undue
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 30 April.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets which are subject to ECL assessment.

Annual Report 2024/25

29. £ @t T A )
20b. I EREEEER

B ()

FEEE R KR EF
REAHBRARIIESCER
SRAEZREBEESEESA
EERR HR55RERTE
£ ARARISEHAEBRZH
BiAK -

BEREEERR AEEEZ
7)&*&.%%%%;{@1‘?@%@&
EE#Z-

BN RE1O R M sES1() AT B - A
SEEEEEETRR HEHE
R-E_AFWUA=Z+THZARD
BEAEAALEEME(ZT N
F MB)FTEHERINNEN
X IE 457,354,000 T (— T =M
4 : 87,188,000/ L) - BN % E &
NHRERECHEEXNEGNEE -
WM EETTREREBETGE -
BEERAER_ZT_AFMNA
+HEZEMNREEEZEER
BAK o

;?ﬁ [ uu}i

EERBRFRIERDE
TREBEAEENEEREK - 51
AEETREECLFEERLR
BEERR  REABRKKALSE
NEMESHEMEMNIN TREE
NBaBHEMRREOA=THZF
RoBBEIBERER-

2R ARRETREGEER
AHENEREENRERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R A B TS R R BT E
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-_AFWHA=+HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 20. € T B
29b. Financial risk management objectives and 2. EEREEAEER
policies (Continued) BE @)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R MR ER S @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BeREREFERD RS E @
As at 30 April 2025 R-B-HEEMA=+AH

Trade receivables FEWE 55K 1E
(note (a)) (Kt (a)
Financial assets &1 A E b FE U R IE
included in other B &R & E
receivables (note (b)) (A% (b))
— Normal —E®
— Doubitful — A &
Cash and cash HekReEEYD

equivalents (note (c) (K&t (c)

Total F

E-BERERAERAAN —T-mE/ -—REEHR 129
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iR A B RS R R BT R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=+HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. € T A

20b. AR EEEER
N5&-AC )
EE R N ERE @
BS R R ERD PR D E @
R-ZZB-_NEFNA=1H

29b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 30 April 2024

12-month
ECLs Life time ECLs
1216 A 38 88
EEER 2 HEBREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—BE F_BER F=BER &% Bt

HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAET

HK$'000  HK$O000  HKE'000
TAET TAT TAT

Trade receivables B E 5 5KIE

(note (a)) (K1 3% @) = = = 545 545
Financial assets T ACE fth fE I SR IE

included in other B & REEE

receivables (note (b)) (A% (b))

— Normal — E= 202 — — _ 202

— Doubtful — 7] & = = = = -
Cash and cash BHeRBReEEY

equivalents (note (c)  (K7#(c)) 65,837 - - - 65,837

66,039 — — 545 66,584

Notes:

(@) As at 30 April 2025, trade receivables primarily consist of
wholesales of watches in Hong Kong. The directors monitor their
balances on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually. Trade receivables in connection with these customers
are with good credit quality and no past due history. In addition,
the management of the Group considers these assets are short-
term in nature and the probability of default is negligible. In this
regard, the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR A B % R R I 5
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 20. €M T Emw
29b. Financial risk management objectives and 200. M BEEBREEEER
policies (Continued) BUER ()
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) FERkENRE §$ 1 (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BEeRBRERI BRI E@
Notes: (Continued) BtaE - (&)
()  The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the ) ZAEBHRBPEERRDKTH
following categories: BIEA TR -

Internal credit rating Description Other receivables

R B 1S B R AR B H fth fE WK E

Normal The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12-month ECL

have any past-due amounts
S RHEHFHENRRRE - B I8 f8 AR R 12 AEHEEER
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

initial recognition through information developed internally
or external resources

AJ & BRATIIIBERRAENEAB TS EERREYR 2HEREEEE — EEF8RE
T 32 LA R K W 185 0

©)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because cash and cash © RBESEERRBRAR G Z2HR

equivalents are placed with reputable banks with external credit ReRBEEBYWNHTFRNES

rating of at least “A” assigned by an international credit-rating BEEILAEES TELIA

agency or state owned. BINBEEIRNEERETDN

RITHEHRTT ©
Liquidity risk REE TR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REBRBESRRE ~&5Eg
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed ERTKBEERRESTEDER
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations FEBEERARUAEREEMNE
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The BEERFEESRREBE RS
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and 5& FHBMNKT TEESER %3 fE
ensures compliance with loan covenants. TEFNERBR  WHERE
fA§€ # o

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TERFIWAEEHETESRHBEE
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has MHTAYEEHBE S - ZRILA
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of EXAEENZANEERHNS
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group BEERUHRRERERE - T
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative SeRBEMNIEBE ST HRIE
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. BEMEEBHREE-
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To TERHIFNERASHESRE i
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted FERERZBFE  ARERE
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the BIRREMR 2T EHREE o

reporting period.
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RGBS R M A
For the year ended 30 April 2025 #HE-Z_-_AFWA=+HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 20. € T A
29b. Financial risk management objectives and 2. EEREEAEER
policies (Continued) R )
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBE SR @

Morethan ~ Morethan ~ More than
Less than 3 months to 1yearto  2yearsto Undiscounted Carrying

Financial liabilities SREE Ondemand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows Amount
AL 1800 E 2E0E REH

RER SR3EA Z1E 22 B5F RemE BHE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FTHT FHT TR TR TR FTHT

As at 30 April 2025 R-ZB-HE

A=tH
Trade and other payables & 5 & E b fé f+f
(excluding contract FE(PBEEH
liabilities) &)
Amount due to ulimate I & AHER A 7
holding company HE

As at 30 April 2024 R-B-_NmF

A=+H
Trade and other payables & 5 K E b f f+f
(excluding contract FE(TREED
liabilities) af - 51,844 - - - 51,844 51,844
Amount due to ultimate ~ FE [ & ARIER A A
holding company HAE 46,095 — — - — 46,095 46,095
Lease liabilities HEBE - 950 - - - 950 941

46,095 52,794 = = = 98,889 98,880
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

TR AEEREEHELZA

kR A B % R R I 5
BE-_TZ-_AFWNA=1THIFE

0. MEEBHELENREYHK

(== =4 =
EE-Es

BMERBELZ

BEREAKEGEAAERERTERERN
ERIBRIAARKBRSRERSE I BERBE
APELZREREZAGE-

Amount due
to ultimate
holding company Lease liabilities Total
B &%
ZERATRE HEAE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT F&T
At 1 May 2024 R-ZE_WMFRA—H 46,095 941 47,036
Financing cash flows MEHRSRE
Repayments B 21) (937) (958)
Interests paid BT F & = ©) ©)
Non-cash changes: R EH)
Finance costs Bl & B AN — 9 9
Exchange realignment & H A — (4) (@)
At 30 April 2025 R-ZE-_RAFMA=+H 46,074 — 46,074
At 1 May 2023 KRB _=FHH—H 46,060 135 46,195
Financing cash flows MERESRE
Proceeds Ffr 1S 318 500 — 500
Repayments ER (465) (643) (1,108)
Interests paid BAF LA = (a71) ()
Non-cash changes: RSB :
Increase in lease liabilities FIHENEBHEESE
from entering into new 30
leases — 5,980 5,980
Lease modification MEEF] — (4,531) (4,531)
Finance costs & B A — 171 171
At 30 April 2024 R-ZZE-_WMFWA=+H 46,095 941 47,036

Hol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& B RS R R A
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NBERIRS
() In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere () BEssaBRELMTD B
in these consolidated financial statements, during the year, the B 5H4 % ﬁ% SN RAFE K
Group entered into the following transactions with related parties: SEEEBFETTATRS
2025 2024
—E-RE —EmE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Commission income (note (a)) & WA (K@) - 1,029
Commission income (note (b)) WA (B b)) 14,763 28,668
Manufacture overhead paid (note (b)) B RES W (HEb) 946 675
Purchase of auxiliary materials (note (b)) KR (A7 0b) 2,307 1,181
Purchase of raw materials (note (b)) R R R (BT 2% (b)) 21,709 16,284
Purchase of property, plant and HBEME BWEREE
equipment 477 —
Advances from ultimate holding company £ & 42 #22 i% A &) # 5% - 500
Repayments to ultimate holding company  [A] 5 #4242 I A 7] & 3% 21 465
The following balances were outstanding at the end of the T AR IRE B R AR EE -
reporting period:
2025 2024
—E_RE —ETYF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Trade payables to related parties (note (b)) &~ BB 77 &9 2 5 7 1E
(7 b) (55,307) -
Prepayments to related parties (note (b)) m) B B 5 S A O FE S R0
(K &% (b)) 57,354 87,188
Amount due to ultimate holding company & i £ 42 #2 i% A & 7K 18 (46,074) (46,095)
Right-of-use assets purchased from I [ 556 5 B B (2 % BE
a related party 641 941
Lease liability due to a related party BB TN EEAE - (941)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these consolidated financial statements, during the year, the
Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:
(Continued)

Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand. Prepayments and
payables from/(to) related parties were trade nature balances,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of the amounts due from/(to) related parties
approximated to their fair values and are denominated in
Renminbi (2024: Renminbi) except for the amount due to ultimate
holding company which is denominated in HK$ (2024: HK$).

unsecured,

During the year ended 30 April 2024, the Group entered into a
lease agreement with a related party. As at 30 April 2024, the
right-of-use assets recognised was approximately HK$941,000
and corresponding lease liabilities recognised was HK$941,000.

In July 2024, the Group purchased production equipment from
related parties for approximately HK$477,000.

Notes:

(@) The related party is an entity of which the controlling shareholder
is a cousin of the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder.
The Group had entered into arrangements for the purchases
of fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers from the
related party to be sold to independent third-party customers.
Such purchases from the related party for the year amounted to
approximately HK$ Nil (2024: HK$47,050,000). As the Group is
considered to be acting as an agent in respect of these purchase
and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission income
of HK$ Nil (2024: HK$1,029,000) for acting as an agent in these
sales and purchases of fertilisers and other related products.

—EEREZEERBERAQ

Lt

#HE_T— EEEH +EIJ£$J“‘

BBAERXZ @m

i)

BRZERAVBEREEMIT D
FEOARSELHRIN RAF
X EARAEE T T AT
25 (&
JER R IER A T
\#Q&&EXTE{%°T4&/(V
1) B3 Bt 75 &0 T8 {5 BB M FE 5 R
i@ﬁ%f@’f%l&?ﬁzmﬁﬁ'ﬁ%‘%\
et B RIZEREE - EBU(FE
B R ENEREEEREE QY
BEREE &LA/\E’#’E(foEE
AREE)FHE - HEMNRRIER
RAIREUAET(ZE-_MF : Bx)
ERER

AR B E R

Bz_Z_WFNWA=+HIF
B AEBEERE S ZHEE D
HF-R-_TE-_WNFEMA=+8"
B MR8 F & E 4 /5941,000
ETREERANEREEREAR
941,000 T °

R-T_NE+ A A& B R
7B B & EREX477,0008 7T ©

Witk -

@ Z@EHITAE—HESE HIER
BEAEAQNAZKIZERRKERD
B3 AREERE B A RER
EREAREEBET LR
ZEREHNBEFBLIE=-HE
F-AEERBABINZSHEE
SHENT B (T _NF:
47,050,000 70) - AR A S E 5t
ZEBEERHIWRAUAREAS
BITE BASEEAZSER
MEMHEBEREENREAM
ERANAEESUABZTEL(ZZ
— P94 : 1,029,0005% 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continues) 31. BBt 5 X 5 (&

() In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere () BzsEEAMBERExEMDH
in these consolidated financial statements, during the year, the BORZELEHRIN REEF
Group entered into the following transactions with related parties: T ASEREBEBREAFETTAT
(Continued) X5 (#&)

Notes: (Continued) BtaE - (&)

(o)  The Group had entered into arrangements for the purchases ) AEBHMIZADANKEZERR
of fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers from related REAZE @ ((ZEBH
parties (the “Related Parties”), which were significantly influenced FHDHRERERESESERET
by the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, to be VEBREE ZEEHEET 3%
sold to independent third-party customers. Such purchases NE=ZFREFE -AFER @B
from the related parties for the year amounted to approximately ) 5% 5 £R B8 © 58 2E 49524,832,000
HK$524,832,000 (2024: HK$582,340,000). As the Group is B (= Z Z M F : 582,340,000
considered to be acting as an agent in respect of these purchase BIL) HRAEERZEEER
and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission income RPGEERBARBAZHITE -
of HK$14,763,000 (2024: HK$28,668,000) for acting as an MR B A% SIER R E A8
agent in these sales and purchases of fertilisers and other related BEREENREAMERL {ﬁﬁ
products. In relation to the Company’s announcements dated & W A £14,763,0005% T (=
9 February 2024 and 17 April 2024, judgements were entered — Y 4 : 28,668,000/ 7T ) ° $E35
against one of the Related Parties and its holding company. AARBBHAEZT-_WF=_A AN
They were severally liable for judgment debts in the amounts of ARZZFE_MNFNA+EANR
approximately RMB68 million and RMB239 million respectively. HoOHEZEEBIEP IR
As at 30 April 2025, there has been no material development HERARER AR FliEHs
regarding the enforcement or settlement of these judgment debts. ARHATEE BIEEHARKE

68%%7%&/\E%239E%7@E@

BREE - R_TB_HFMA=
TH HEERNRTIOBER

BERER -
The Group purchased raw materials, auxiliary materials, and REBREERFEEESIERZ
manufacture overhead from the Related Parties for manufacture LB AEBRME REH IR
and sales of compound fertilisers. TATREE I o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 April 2025

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  31.
(i) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of members of key management of the Group,
comprising the directors of the Company, during the year was as
follows:

RGBS R MR
BE-_TZ-_AFWNA=1THIFE

BB RSm
(i) TESEASEHH

AREXTEZERAB(BEARA
ERRAFERNNFHOT

2024
—E M
HK$’000
FAT

Fees, salaries, bonus, other allowances #& * &4 /4L - HbEE K&
and benefits in kind B F 5= 6,655
Retirement benefit costs R ARAE R B A 42
Total 4@t 6,697

The remuneration of directors is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

2 -BERZEERAERA A

EENFM O BT HEZEERE
HREARBERTEBLEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR A B R R B R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-—Z-_RAFNA=THILFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 2. KRB EEHNE AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY F 15
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the RBEBRRARREEWB AR ZFHE
reporting periods are set out below. AT o
Particulars of
issued share
Place of incorporation/ capital/registered Principal activities and
Name establishment capital Equity interest held place of operation
48 o BRORA/ER
SRR/ AL S BA 2 iR TEEBREB Y
2025 2024
ZECRE TN
Directly held EEBE
Tic Tac Interational Company Limited' ~ British Virgin Islands (‘BVI’) Uss$2 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
HEEBRARAR RERLHE ((ARELEE)) 2XTT REBREAER
POI Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
E-BBRARARA EBRAHS e REBREER
Indirectly held BERE
City Creat Limited" Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Wholesale of watches in Hong Kong
WAERAR' BE 18T REBR ERReRA
Jenus Top International Limited' Hong Kong HK$300,000 100% 100%  Provision of management services
in Hong Kong
HEERARAA' B 300,000 T REBREEE RS
Sun Step Asia Limited" Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% 100% Wholesale of watches in Hong Kong
BETHERAR B 500,000 7T REBUERER S
Tic Tac Time Company Limited' Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of watches in Hong Kong
HEERARAA Bh 3,000,0007% 7T REBR ERRRA B
Treasure Ascent International Limited' ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of management services
in Hong Kong
ERERARAA)' B0 500,0007% 7T REBREEE RS
Prosper Orge Industrial Investment BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited
E-EEXREERAA ERENES E REEREER
Prosper Or11e Commerce Investment BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited
E-HEREERAA RBREAEHS E REBREAER
Prosper One Eco-Technology Limited'  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
E-BREEERAR BE 10,0007 7T REBEREER
Prosper One Fertiizer Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
E-EEARAA BE 187 REBREBER

138 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2024/25
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For the year ended 30 April 2025

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

kR A B % R R I 5
BE-_TZ-_AFWNA=1THIFE

2. AP EXTENRBLTMN

EX AT )

Particulars of
issued share
Place of incorporation/ capital/registered Principal activities and
Name establishment capital Equity interest held place of operation
3 o BRETBA/ER B
SERAL/H b EX 2 iR TEEBREE Y
2025 2024
“ECHE —T-E
Indirectly held (Continued) BiEHE (H)
Prosper Or11e Resources Commerce Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited
E-ARESERAA BE 18T REBREAER
Prosper OQe Well Rich Commerce Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100% Inactive
Limited
E-HERESERAA A 18T Taex
WRE-BRHEARAR o  PRC HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Provision of consulting services
WRE-BREIEERAR G ZE +H 50,000,000 70 RAE T AR TS
WRE-EENBRERAR PRC HK$50,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of fertlisers and other
related products in PRC,
manufacture and sales of
compound fertilisers in PRC
HE 50,000,000 70 REEEEREHREMIAS
E& LRRAAYER
HEERE
LEE— Lt TEHARAF? PRC HK$50,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of fertiisers and other
related products in PRC
HE 50,000,000 7T REEEEEHREMARER
LRE-BEBESHERAF’ PRC HK$50,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of fertilisers and other
related products in PRC
HE 50,000,000/ 7t RAEE B REIEREER

Incorporated as a limited liability company under local jurisdiction

2

Registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC law

Note: |LIHEE —RREHZ AR A 7] was deregistered in February 2025.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at 30
April 2025 and 2024 or at any time during both years.

E-EEREERABRAQA

! REBEEWEREMKILIA/ERAF
§ RIBFHBEEREIMRIIERE X

ME WRE-BRHEARAAER T
—HE AR

ARABEERR ERINTZARAMN
BRAETEFEAESBZREHNEER
BE-ARAIEFTRA HIIH MK E
RAZHABHEAFBEATTE  &F
Bt o
BENBAAN - ZBE-_AFR-_FT /N
FHA=+ B R W EFE R AE [ E
BEAREEZEHES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR a BT R R T AR
For the year ended 30 April 2025

BE-_Z-_AFWNA=1THIFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting periods includes:

33. AR MBMRRKRK &R

ARBRBERR 2B BRARKEH
B

2024
—ETpUF
HK$’'000
FAT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries NN = X 21
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U BfT /B R B 3R IR 1,328
Other receivables and prepayments Hfth i W 3k IE M FE S OB 48
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 4,061
5,437
Total assets BEE 5,458
Capital and reserves BN K
Share capital & 7 8,000
Reserves ] (60,631)
Total deficit &5 At 48 K8 (52,631)
Current liabilities mE A E
Trade payables JETE 5 5K1E 4,541
Accruals and other payables FERT & A & H fib FE 5 3k 78 49,530
Contract liabilities BHAEE 4,018
Total liabilities BEREE 58,089
Total equity and liabilities HERRAE 5,458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR A B R R T R
For the year ended 30 April 2025 HE-Z-RAFWNA=+HIFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33 RATFHBEMRRETR
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) fik 48 )
Movement in the Company’s reserves BARZRERE
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
IR 17 % B B E RitEiE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET THET TET THET

Balance at 1 May 2023 RZEZ=%
AA—B2&EH 118,368 66,887 (232,723) (47,468)

Total comprehensive expense 2 M B X ¥ 58
Loss for the year FAERE — — (13,163) (13,163)

Balance at 30 April 2024 and R —ZF — 4

1 May 2024 MA=+HR
—E O
AA—RBZ&EH 118,368 66,887 (245,886) (60,631)

Total comprehensive expense 2 M B X 42 5

Loss for the year FREE — = (707) (707)
Balance at 30 April 2025 RZEZRF
WA=+HZH#&#% 118,368 66,887 (246,593) (61,338)
34. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 34, LBEF
Certain comparative figures have been restated in Notes 12, 21 and 29 12 - 21 R29OME T RBFELSE
to conform to the current year’s presentation. P AFERFEMNZI)F R -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IAFEMBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group forthe ANEBBERAFAMBRFENEEANEER
=

last five financial years is set out below: B2 ERINAT :
RESULTS E
Year ended 30 April
HEMA=tRLEE
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
—E--f —T--F —ZT-=F -T-NF ZBZHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FTAEL FAEL THxT AT TERT
Continuing operations REREER
Revenue Wz 83,372 75,269 35,563 71,854 77,224
Cost of sales HERR (39,303) (34,647) (904) (30,394) (54,867)
Gross profit EH 44,069 40,622 34,659 41,460 22,357
Other gains and losses, net Hthoss ko B 58 6,091 5,413 477 2,370 2,087
Selling and distribution costs HE KD HEAR (26,795) (29,000) (11,264) (21,100) (9,361)
Administrative expenses THAY (19,792 (18,801) (15,503) (18,015) (8,134)
Operating profit/(loss) e EA/(BE) 3,573 (1,772) 8,369 4,715 6,949
Finance costs BEKAK (1,229) (525) (15) (171) ©)
Profit/(loss) before tax REFEEEEBH
from continuing operations BR Bt Al 518 2,344 (2,297) 8,354 4,544 6,940
Income tax expense FiEH X (3,113) (4,149) (5,159) (3,263) (1,524)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing RERECEEBNFR
operations (B1])/ &7 (769) (6,446) 3,201 1,281 5,416
Discontinued operation CDRILER
Loss for the year from discontinued operation KB B & IF £ %K F RSB - — (5,858) — =
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EE)/ &7 (769) (6,446) (2,657) 1,281 5,416
Other comprehensive income/(expense) HE2mkz/ (Fx) 2,465 (706) (2,062) (2,763) (363)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ~ FR2EKE /(%) A
for the year 1,696 (7,152) (4,719) (1,482) 5,053
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ~ £RZ2EKE /(%) A%
for the year attributable to: BER .
Owners of the Company N/NGIEZ =N 1,696 (7,152) (4,719 (1,482) 5,053
Non-controling interests e = = = = -
1,696 (7,152) (4,719) (1,482) 5,053
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREAESE
For the year ended 30 April
BENA=tHLEE
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
—E-—% ZZT-_-_f ZE-_=-f ZEZ_NF | ZEBZHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TAT THEx TEL TEL TER
Total assets BmEBE 185,802 163,860 201,597 173,090 208,918
Total liabilities mefE (157,078) (142,288) (184,744) (157,719 (188,494)
Total equity s 28,724 21,572 16,853 15,371 20,424
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